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KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 

2001 - 2002 

PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

Thank you all for a great year! It was an honour and a pleasure to be your President in the 84th year of 
this VENERABLE Kiwanis Club of Ottawa. All club members should be very proud of their work 
undertaken in our community each year and particularly now in light of the recent tragic events that have 
made a sense of community more important than ever. 

I want to thank the Executive and the Board Members, all of whom have provided loyal support and 
hours of hard work to guide the actions of the club. As I noted in my closing remarks on Turnover Day, 
the club has again had an extremely successful year in fundraising, thanks to the hard work of the Chairs 
and their committees. Already a new fundraising year is underway with the opening of the hockey 
season and our Partners-in-Caring initiative to sell Senators' 10th Anniversary Booklets and our 
Oktoberfest. I hope you will all give these the same support as you provided last year. 

We welcomed 17 new members to our club this year, thanks to the work of the Membership Committee. 
I hope that these new members will fmd a home in Kiwanis that is both welcoming and satisfying. We 
also welcomed the Governor General's Food Guards Cadet Corps as another sponsored youth activity. 
Our Aktion Club received it's Charter and our sponsored Kiwanianne Club has elected to charter as the 
Kiwanis Club of By town. Congratulations to both these Clubs. 

I know that I have enjoyed, and I hope you have as well, the excellent programs this year, put together by 
our talented and resourceful Program Committee. 

Administration has been a major challenge this year with Rita's departure and the other changes in 
our office. We welcomed Joanne Muckle as our new and very capable General Manager, and more 

IMMEDIATE PAST-PRESIDENT ••• • • 
Eldon J. Healey recently Laura Johnson, as AdmInIstrative ASSistant, whose talents we have seen In the office 

HONORARY TREASURER 

Sam Bhargava 
Bruce Brooks 
lynda Campbell 
David Daubney 
Derek Finley 
Michel Podeszfinski 
Mike St.louis 

GENERAL MANAGER 

before. One of the ongoing concerns we should all have is to balance the workload in the office so 
that work can be accomplished within office hours. I was very proud of the send-off we provided 
to Rita and her husband Andy - she certainly deserved it. 

I want to wish President Richard and his Administration all the best for this, our 85th year, as it 
will be a very busy one with the visit of the International President next month and the EC&C 
Convention in August, 2002. I know you will give Richard the same excellent support you 
provided to me. Thank you. 

Yours in Kiwanis, 

Ed Healey, President 1999-2000 

"SERVING THE CHILDREN OF THE WORLD" 

SUITE 601, 63 SPARKS STREET, OTTAWA, ONTARIO K1 P 5A6 (613) 233-1900 FAX (613) 233-3718 www.ottawakiwanis.o 
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Annual General Meeting of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 
for the Fiscal year 1999-2000 
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - 1999-2000 January 5, 2001 
,-------------------------------

President Ed Healey declared this to be the Annual General Meeting of the Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa, notice of which was given in the Bulletin of November 24th and December 1st. 2000 and 
advised that Past President Wayne Beaudoin will be acting as Parliamentarian for this meeting. 

President Ed called on Past President John Callan to preside over this portion of the meeting. 

Past President John Callan called for a motion to adopt the report of the Standing Committees 
which are found in the 1999-2000 Annual Report. It was MOVED by Allan Castledine, 
SECONDED by Don Blakslee. CARRIED. 

Past President John called for a motion to approve the Minutes of the Annual General 
Business Meeting of the Club, held December 17, 1999 which are found in the Annual Report. 
MOVED by Matt McGrath, SECONDED by Peter Charboneau. CARRIED. 

Past President John Callan called on Past Honourary Treasurer BRUCE BROOKS to present the 
1999-2000 Auditor's Report for the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa. 

Bruce explained that we have two entities - Community Services and the General Account and that 
they are put together for reporting purposes only. He reiterated that in 1999 we had a surplus and 
budgeted to have an $18K deficit this year. As well, the Capital Surplus Review Committee was 
formed to make recommendations and to determine how to spend $65,000 in the community. We 
spent $55,000 with $10,000 left for this year. We should have had a $70,000 deficit in the year 2000. 
Bruce reviewed the Revenue and Expenses and explained the reasons for the surplus not being 
decreased. 

Lome Smith asked what the Government requirement is for the funds going back to the community 
and was told that 90% of funds raised in one year must be spent in that year. 

MEDICAL FOUNDATION - Bruce explained the Revenue and Expenses and Investments for the 
Medical Foundation. Alan Smith asked if we are still trying to reach the $1M mark for this 
committee and the answer was - yes. 

Ron Wing noted the low level of expenses in administering the investments and thanked Allan 
Castledine for his help in this area. 

MOVED by Bruce Brooks, SECONDED by Susan Menzies, that the Auditor's Report for the 
Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, Inc., found on the orange sheets of the Annual Report, be adopted. 

CARRIED. 
2 
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - Page 2 

BRUCE BROOKS moved that the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the 
Consolidated Statement of Operations, found on the 3rd and 4th pages of the orange sheets of the 
Annual Report, be adopted. SECONDED by Matt McGrath. CARRIED. 

PAST PRESIDENT JOHN CALLAN indicated that Bruce Brooks will also be presenting the 1999-
2000 Auditor's Report for the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation. MOVED by Bruce 
Brooks, SECONDED by Peter Charboneau that we approve the Auditor's Report for the Kiwanis 
Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation, found on the orange sheets of the Annual Report. CARRIED. 

BRUCE BROOKS moved that we approve the Statement of Financial Position and Statement 
of Operations for the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation. SECONDED by George perrin'ij 

CARRIED. 
PAST PRESIDENT JOHN CALLAN expressed a vote of thanks to KPMG who once again, copied, 
collated and stapled our Annual Reports at no charge. 

Past President John Callan turned the meeting over to President Ed Healey 

PRESIDENT ED HEALEY called on Honorary Treasurer Michael Findlay to present the Proposed 
Budgets for the year 2000-2001. 

It was MOVED by Michael Findlay, SECONDED by Brian Quinn that the Proposed Budgets for the 
year 2000-2001 which are found on the green sheets at page 59 of the Annual Report be accepted. 

CARRIED. 
BUDGETS - Michael Findlay explained the Budgets line by line and advised that the $24,000 deficit 
is to reduce the Capital Surplus. He stated that an amount of $6000 has been added, after the budgets 
were prepared, for the Governor General's Foot Guards Cadets. 

Brian Quinn asked about the matching formula for IDD from CIDA and Past President Ron Wing 
explained that the program is only effective as of January 01, 2001. 

MOVED by Michael Findlay, SECONDED by Dominic D' Arcy that the club approve an increase in 
the Club membership dues in 20001-2002 of up to $20.00 (for annual dues of $290.00) IF 
NECESSARY, explaining that one year's notice must be given for an increase in fees. 
(Approval for an increase was given in 1997-98 and the Board approved an increase in Annual 
Membership Dues for 1998-99 of$10 to $270.00.) 
MOVED by Michael Findlay, SECONDED by Jean Filion that the club approve an increase in the 
luncheon fees by $1.00 effective January 1,2001, as was approved at the Board of Director's meeting 
of November 6,2000 (to match the increase from the Chateau to $25.00). This would mean $17.00 
for Active members who prepay and $25.00 for members and guests who pay at the door. 

3 



ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - Page 3 

Michael Findlay presented the Proposed Budget for the Air Cadets Committee and MOVED 
acceptance, SECONDED by Mike St. Louis. CARRIED. 
Michael Findlay turned the meeting back to President Ed Healey. 

It was MOVED by Matt McGrath, SECONDED by Clive Woolley that we approve KPMG as our 
Club Auditors for the General, Community Services and Medical Foundation Accounts for the year 
2000-2001. CARRIED. 

President Ed Healey explained that the Percentage of Attendance Report which is usually included in 
the Annual Report, was not available for the Annual Report and will be mailed to all members at a 
future date. 
He also mentioned that this meeting gives the members the opportunity to ask questions or to voice 
their concerns about the club and he opened the floor to questions from members, stating that the 
Board would try to answer them to the best of their ability or take them back to be reviewed at a 
Board of Directors meeting. 

Allan Castledine asked why there was no report from the Inter Club, Sports & Social Committee-
Chair Susan Menzies apologized for this but stated that family illness has prevented her from 
preparing the report. 
Susan asked if we will go through the Surplus again this year but President Ed explained that it was a 
one time function only. 

John O'Neill asked if the Board has considered any new fundraiser as the funds raised have decreased 
in the budget - President Ed explained that we try to meet the $500,000 gross each year and that 
committees are aware of this. 

Wayne Beaudoin noted that we have a surplus in our luncheon account and it seems that the 
attendance is down even though the programs have been excellent. President Ed explained that the 
Board is considering ways of increasing attendance. 

Jean Filion suggested that the club hold a "working lunch" where members can discuss ways of raising 
funds, where they should go, etc. President Ed agreed and asked Jean, as the Program Chair, to set up 
such a luncheon. 

PRESIDENT ED HEAlEY declared the Annual General Meeting over and thanked the members for 
their comments and questions. 

PRESIDENT ED then presented his last President's Rose to Past President John Callan and thanked 
him as a hands-on, energetic leader who was a President "with the best of the club's future in mind". 

4 

--------



1--

r= 
I-

r-
r 
r 
r 

r-
I 
! "ii 

I, 

Annual Report: 211 Ottawa Kiwanis 
Royal Canadian Air Cadet Squadron 

The most significant event of the 2000-2001 training year was the presentation of a new 
Squadron Banner. This ceremony involved members of the Sponsoring Committee and 
the Kiwanis Club executive, along with current and former cadets, staff and committee 
members. Notably Mr. Allan Castledine, the first cadet in the Squadron and a 
longstanding member of the Kiwanis Club, was on hand to present the new banner. 
Presided over by a representative from the Canadian Forces Chaplain General's office, 
the ceremony demonstrated to our cadets the Squadron's strong roots and ongoing 
links to our community. 

Overall, the Sponsoring Committee's support was invaluable in the Squadron's 
operations, including assistance in recruiting (the preparation and distribution of 
pamphlets), ceremonial events and celebrations (the Squadron's Holiday Dinner, Mess 
Dinner and attendance at the Kiwanis Luncheon), sports events (the Squadron's hosting 
of the annual Ottawa Valley Air Cadet Bonspiel) and the end-of-year Annual Inspection. 
The committee also provided facilities for the Cadet Harassment and Abuse Prevention 
Program (CHAPP) training, as well as the Squadron drill team. As well, a number of 
committee's members attended weekly training and sports nights, and attended CHAPP 
training themselves. 

Other key activities were as follows: 

Flying Operations: 

• Thanks to the committee's support, the Squadron held a flying day in late 
September. All cadets were able to take part in familiarization flights out of Gatineau 
airport. The cadets also enjoyed a hotdog luncheon prepared by members of the 
committee. 

• The Squadron also took part in a gliding day during the fall. Unfortunately, due to 
inclement weather, not all the cadets were able to get a flight in. The Squadron also 
organized a visit to the Ottawa International Airport as a familiarization activity for 
junior cadets. 

Survival Training: 

• The Squadron took part in two survival exercises in the fall and winter, designed to 
develop survival and leadership skills in the cadets. The fall exercise, at Round 
Lake, ON, included instruction in shelter construction, navigation and survival 
psychology, as well as having range training. The winter exercise at Connaught 
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Ranges was planned and coordinated by senior cadets, giving them the opportunity 
to apply their leadership abilities. 

Sports Activities: 

• As noted above, in February the Squadron hosted the Ottawa Valley Air Cadet 
Bonspiel. Teams from six of the eight regional squadrons took part, with 742 
Squadron taking top honours, with both the first and second placed teams. 

• The Squadron also attended the Inter-Squadron Bowling Meet (hosted by 742 Sqn), 
Swim Meet (706 Sqn), Range Competition (872 Sqn) and Winter Olympiades (500 
Sqn) (other events fell on the weekends of our exercises). For these activities, Capt 
Mackinnon negotiated a "free trade" agreement, with no entry fees for sports events, 
with the other units' COs. 

Community Support: 

• 211 Squadron was extremely active in our community, in particular through our 
support for Branch 480 (Westboro) of the Royal Canadian Legion. Last year, we 
participated in several of their parades: the Battle of Britain (September 17), 7 
Remembrance Day and the Battle of the Atlantic (May 6), as well as helping the 
Constance Bay Legion in their Remembrance Day services (November 4). We also 
assisted the Westboro Leg ion with poppy sales. 

• The Squadron also assisted two local churches with their Remembrance Day 
services (Parkdale United and st. Basil's) and participated in the Kiwanis Club's own 
Remembrance Day luncheon. 

Summer Camps: 

• No report on the Squadron's activities would be complete without mention of cadets' 
participation in summer camps. The Squadron successfully filled all its junior camp 
positions, sending 21 cadets to various two- and three-week courses such as the 
Basic Cadet Training, Aircrew Survival, Introduction to Leadership, Introduction to 
Aviation, Physical Education & Recreation and Cadet Instructor Courses. 

• The Squadron was also extremely successful in its senior courses, with two 
candidates receiving their power wings (Flight Sergeants Zurakowski and Hutter) 
and one receiving his gliding wings (Flight Sergeant Willcox), as well as cadets 
qualifying in Rifle Coaching (Sergeant Zurakowski) and Survival Instruction 
(Sergeant Gauthier). Notably, Flight Sergeant Krysia Zurakowski maintained an 
overall average above 900/0 in the Power Course. The Squadron also had three 
senior cadets on camp staff (Warrant Officer Coffey, Flight Sergeant Cottrell and 
Sergeant Kerr). All of these achievements reflect extremely well on the training 
provided at the Squadron, with the support of the Sponsoring Committee and the 
Kiwanis Club as a whole. 

6 



3 - Air Cadets 

In January of this year, the Club became the proud sponsors of the 2784 Governor 
General's Foot Guard Army Cadet Corps. Tom Moore from the Sage Club and 
Director Steve Moore were instrumental in creating this partnership. Bob Vergette and 
his committee have played a major role in establishing our sponsorship. Major 
Robert Barette and his staff are to be congratulated for their hard work and 
commitment to the cadets. 

The committee is unique in the club, as it also has representation from the Sage 
Kiwanis Club and the Parents Committee of the corps. 

The corps excelled this year, being chosen as the top army cadet corps in Ontario and 
were presented with the Colonel John H.C. Clarry award and trophy. 

As the Air Cadets "Reach for the Stars" and the Army Cadets rally around their battle cry 
"Up the Guards", we the present day members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, as our 
peers did in the past, will help to promote the young men and women of today to be the 
leaders of tomorrow. 

Vice Chair: 
Director: 
Vice President: 
Jill Bobula 
Guy bourbonniere 
Claudia Coburn 
Guy Desnoyers 
Buck Madden 
Moira McDonald 
Patrick McGarry 

Aubrey de Young 
Maurice Powers 
Janet Dodds 

Michael Morling 
Greg Payne 
Sandra Presley 
Mike St. Louis 
Bob Vergette 
Ron Vincent 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ken Miller, Chair 
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GOVERNOR GENERAL FOOT GUARDS ARMY CADETS 2000-2001 

To: The President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa officially took sponsorship of the GGPG's in January, 2001. I was 
delighted to be appointed the Chairman in the inaugural year. Having the resources of the Air Cadet 
Committee and the tutorship of Ken Miller available, we quickly put our experience to good use. 

This committee is somewhat unique in that there are various other parties co-operating in the 
sponsorship of the GGPG's, lead by the Parents Committee. The strong leadership of Lise Young 
and the Parents Committee was instrumental in maintaining the existence of the GGPG's. 

The GGFG's are made up of approximately 92 cadets, officers and NCO's. Major Robert Barrette is 
the CO of the unit and has provided excellent leadership skills and encouragement. 

The Cadets were exceptionally busy and the following are a few of the events they were involved in: 

Three (3) field exercises at Connaught Ranges 
Sports Day at Connaught Ranges 
Various community activities, such as Big Brothers, selling poppies, etc. 
CO-hosting the Winnipeg Rifles for inter-provincial exchange program 
20 Cadets took part in a live link with the International Space Station 
Two (2) Cadets spoke directly with LCol Chris Hadfield 
20 Cadets volunteered for the Tour de Nortel 
They were the winner of the Top Cadet Corps in Ontario 

As you can see, the GGPG's were a very busy group. They parade every Wednesday at the Cartier 
Drill Hall at 6:30 p.m. The final year-end parade was held at Cartier Drill Hall on June 6th, 2001 and 
was well attended by our President, several Board and Committee members. 

I am looking forward to the coming year and I appreciate the cooperation of the Board, co-sponsors, 
Parents Committee and committee members. 

Vice-Chair Buck Madden 
Secretary: Paul Nemeth 
Treasurer: Tom Moore (Sage Club) 
Director: Steve Moore 
Vice President: Janet Dodds 

Respectfully submitted, 

Bob Vergette, Chair 

CO - Major Robert Barrette 
Co-sponsor - John Gooch (Sage Club) 
Co-sponsor - Al Durrell (Sage Club) 
League Representative - Joe Pelisek 
Chairman, Parents Committee - Lise young 
Co-sponsor - Pire Dept. Representative - Pat McGuire 

8 



BON APPETIT! OTTAWA - SILENT AUCTION COMMITTEE 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Our 3rd edition of the Bon Appetit! Silent Auction was held on Tuesday, May 8th, 2001 once 
again at the Aberdeen Pavilion of Lansdowne Park. 

This year's event was very successful, even though it was a tougher sell with fewer items to 
auction. Attendance was down by more than 500 people with 100 less bidders. It was evidently 
more difficult this year to solicit items for the auction with more charitable competition and silent 
auctions taking place throughout the city. Despite these major challenges, the Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa Bon Appetit Silent Auction is becoming well known to the public. I believe attendees 
look forward to participating in the auction. 

The committee performed extremely well and I thank everyone for their efforts in making this 
year's event another success. I would like to thank many Kiwanians from outside our committee 
as well who contributed to the efforts with special thanks to Elaine Melamed, Kathleen Holst, 
Laura Johnson, Ian Hendry and the Staples Team under the leadership of Stephen Tanner. 

This year's event brought in a total of$47,180.00 with a net yield of $36,083 for our Club's 
Community Services account. 

I now pass the Chairman's torch to Steve Tanner who has graciously accepted the position of 
Chair for 2002. I look forward to working with Steve and his Vice-Chair, Elliot Melamed on next 
year's Bon Appetit Committee and I am anticipating another successful auction event in May of 
2002. 

Vice Chair: 
Director: 
Vice-President: 

Robert Kalbfleisch 
Jamie Johnson 
Rick Barrigar 

Respectfully submitted, 

Robert st. Louis, Chair 

Tom Beveridge Elliot Melamed 
Sheri Farahani Mike Moore 
Steve Georgopoulos Barry Nicholds 
Vic Jones Brad Ronald 
Kevin Keohane 
Mike Lundy 

Tom Spence 
Steve Tanner 
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The President and Members 
Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

DREAM OF A LIFETIME 
2000 - 2001 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa provided volunteers and sold tickets for the CHEO 2000 
2001 Dream Of A Lifetime lottery. Kiwanis exceeded its 800 ticket target and 
earned, $28,984 net of costs, 

During this year's draw we returned to selling tickets at the first prize dream house. 
This proved to be more productive from a volunteer utilization perspective than 
selling from the Bayshore Shopping Centre as we had done the previous year. Last 
year at Bayshore, approximately 1,144 hours of volunteer time were used to generate 
350 ticket sales. This year, selling from the dream house, approximately 400 tickets 
were sold using 440 volunteer hours. While the second prize house was supposed to 
have been made available to us, it was not completed in time and did not contribute to 
sales. 

The participation of Kiwanis members in selling tickets directly to their friends, 
business associates and co-workers also plays a large role. Participation, however, 
was down this year with approximately 300 tickets being sold directly by Kiwanis 
members as opposed to 350 in the previous year. 

As in the case of the previous year, we also participated in a special Media Day at 
Bayshore. Unlike the previous year, this was not a success. In the previous year 
personalities from the various TV and radio stations went on air live, entertained and 
ran promotion contests from the event, generating a great deal of interest and traffic. 
This year few of the big name personalities attended, they stayed on stage for only a 
few minutes and did not go live to air or run any contests. While they were on stage 
crowds were drawn, only to disappear when the personality left the stage. By 
comparison, Media Day generated only 100 ticket sales this year compared over 400 
in the previous year. 

The Kiwanianne Club of Ottawa provided volunteers for one weekend for which they 
were paid $2,000.. The move to the dream house proves to be a significant problem 
for the Kiwanianne as many of their members are elderly and do not drive. 

Kate McLeod, this year's vice chair, provided invaluable assistance co-ordinating 
operations at the dream house. I am very confident that Kate will make an excellent 
future chair for this committee. 

10 
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In summary, the following points should be kept in mind for future operations of this 
committee: 

• As is the case with some other committees, Dream of a Lifetime starts well 
before turnover and the start of our year. The committee chair and members 
need to be in place by August. 

• Selling from the first prize dream home appears to be the most productive 
way for Kiwanis to manage its efforts, we should insist on maintaining this as 
our primary selling locale. 

• In light of the move to selling from the dream house the role of the 
Kiwanianne needs to be re examined. 

• If CHEO is going to stage a Media Day we should be involved more in the 
planning. If it is not planned as a major event we should consider not 
participating. 

Finally, with a view to the future, big ticket lotteries are becoming more prevalent 
and the market is becoming more competitive. Large and attractive lotteries such as 
the Princess Margaret Hospital lottery are now selling into our area. We can not sit 
back and assume that the public will support us just "because its for CHEO". The 
majority of purchasers are in this for the prize. CHEO needs to keep the lottery fresh 
and exciting. Kiwanis needs to constantly ask is this lottery still viable? Should we 
still be participating? 

Committee Members 
Vice President Janet Dodds 
Director Michael Findlay 

Vice Chair Kate McLeod 
Kathleen Holst 
Vic Reid 

Respectfully submitted 

Patrick E. Flain, Chair 
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DUCK RACE COMMITTEE REPORT - 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The 14th Kiwanis Duck Race for Tiny Hearts at CHEO was held on May 12th, 2001 at Hartwell Locks, 
Carleton University. I am pleased to report that we raised $150,209.00 for CHEO bringing our 14 year total 
to $3,645,335.00. 

Farm Boy Fresh Markets enjoyed their 4th year as the presenting sponsor and will continue in that capacity 
until 2002. 

There was strong participation from local Kiwanis Clubs and I would like to recognize the efforts of the 
Nepean, Westboro, Sage, Carleton, Ottawa-Vanier, Southenders, Riverside, Cle d'Or de L'Outaouais, 
Rideau, Kiwanianne Club of Ottawa as well as the Nepean, Sir Robert Borden and Bell Key Clubs. 

The prizing recognizes the strong commitment of the corporate community to the Duck Race. I am grateful 
to South Bank Dodge Chrysler Jeep, Howard Manufacturers Jewellers, Royal Bank and Royal Bank 
Employees, Star-Top Furniture Plus, Ormes Furniture and the Ottawa Tourism and Convention Authority. 
F or a complete listing of the prizes and prize winners please visit the Ottawa Kiwanis Website at 
Ottawakiwanis.org. 

Our corporate team of Duck Dealers again contributed greatly to the success of the race. They included (but 
not limited to) Pharma Plus Drug Marts, Royal Bank, Farm boy, Bell Canada, Apollo Management, Mullens 
Esso, Staples Business Depot, Scotiabank, Shoppers Drug Mart and Outback Steak Houses. I would also 
like to recognize our appreciation of the efforts of the Department of National Defence and HMCS Carleton. 

The Duck Race is a co-operative effort between the CHEO Foundation and the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa. I 
would like to thank Mary Hawkeye and Dave Ready at the Foundation for their invaluable help. 

Race day always runs smoothly thanks to the efforts of many, many volunteers. My sincere thanks to all 
Kiwanis members and other volunteers who, year after year, ensure a successful launch (and return) of the 
ducks. 

I had a dedicated committee and I would like to express my appreciation for their hard work. 

Vice-Chair: Brian Kloppenburg 
Director: Derek Finley 
Vice-President: Rick Barrigar 

Anthony McGlynn Steve Tanner 
Mike Zanon Lynda Campbell 

Respectfully submitted, 

Chris Thompson, Chair 

Howard Lithwick Krys Rudko 
Frank Tipper Peter Markham Val Wilkins 12 
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Golf Tournament 2000/2001 

To: The President and the Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The 2001 Kiwanis "Young Children - Priority One" Golf Tournament was another 
outstanding success for our Club. We are pleased to report that our 2001 
Tournament achieved a net profit of about $70,000 for the club, and $5,000 over 
our Budget. 

The keys to the success for this year's tournament came down to the committee 
members continued participation. This year's committee was made up of many 
members that have been on the committee for 4 years and this has provided us 
with a smooth transition each year and the ability to understand where we can 
improve the tournament to impact our bottom line. 

The tournament this year was blessed by rain holding off until after play had 
finished. Many Kiwanis members that were not committee members volunteered 
their time and helped ensure that we had a tournament day that ran very 
smoothly. 

The ability to increase net revenues in future years is somewhat limited by a 
limited amount of golfers and sponsorship opportunities as well as expenses that 
can increase from year to year based on decisions of the golf club. 

That being said, the Tournament after four years is positioned as one of the 
premier charity golf tournaments in the City and has the ability to be a strong 
fundraiser for our club for many years to come. 

My thanks and gratitude to everyone who was involved in making this year's 
tournament the great success that it was. 

Organizing committee: 

Vice Chair Jeremy Moore 
Director Rick Barrigar 

Clive Woolley 
Barry Nicholds 
Jim Wright 
Shawn Williams 

Alan Smith 
Ron Wing 
Frank Tipper 
John Norton 

Respectfully submitted, 

Michael Moore, Chair 

Tom Pullen 
Jeremy Moore 
John Harcourt 
Ross Hadwen 

Darrell Powell 
John Law 
Jeff Kyle 
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HANDS ON COMMITTEE REPORT 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Here is our report of the completed projects that we worked on. 

Bearing Screeninl: Project: With the foresight of Sam Bhargava, CHEO and First Words, the Hand's 
On Committee facilitated 3 hearing screening clinics. This program perfonns audiology tests on 
underprivileged children whose parents are not able to bring their children to CHEO or a paediatrician. 
The results exceeded all expectations. A total of 55 children were tested out of which 22 children have 
been referred for further examination. 

Special Olympics: On June 3, 2001, we assisted by marshalling and lunch preparation with the 
Regional Finals for Track & Field in which 120 Special Olympics athletes from across Eastern 
Ontario took part at the Terry Fox Athletic Centre at Mooney's Bay. 
Athletes competed in short and long distance track events as well as shot put and long jump. We 
also perfonned the National Anthem for the crowd. Special thanks to Bruce, Ross, Bob, Kevin and 
Steve for a job well done. Special bonus marks for doing all this work in the pouring rain. 

Interval Bouse; We built storage shelves, a new rITe escape ramp, removed overgrown trees/shrubs 
and moved a large section of fence which expanded their parking facilities and improved security in this 
shelter for battered women. The tree removal and moving of the fence was a very demanding job which 
would not have been accomplished had not all the active members jumped in with full force to get the 
job done. Special thanks to Bruce, Ross, Bob, Kevin, Gord and Steve. 

Ottawa Rape Crisis Centre; This centre asked us to build a new wall and doorway making two 
private consultation rooms out of one large room. The job was very challenging technically and really 
beyond our limitations but Rita's husband, Andy Harper, who is a highly qualified contractor, offered 
to do the lion's share of the work for free! Much gratitude goes out to Andy for taking on such a 
demanding job. Kevin McGrath should also be congratulated for doing much of the work and finishing 
the job after Andy and Rita moved to BC. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
Vice-President: Janet Dodds 
Director: Bruce Brooks 
Vice-Chair: Gord Fleming 

Respectfully yours, 

Bill Harsh, 

Wayne Beaudoin, Ross Hadwen, Bill Harsh, Bob Horlick, Kevin McGrath, Stephen Weeks. 
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INTERCLUB, SPORTS & SOCIAL COMMITTEE REPORT - 2000-2001 

To: The President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

It was a challenging year at best, given that there was no carry over of members from the previous year's 
committee and that we lost several good members early in the year which meant we started at ground zero. 

In spite of the challenges we were able to enjoy a tribute to Past President Ron Wing at the Mess early in the 
season to honour him for receiving his Distinguished Past Govemor Award - it was a well attended event 
which kicked off our year. 

In addition to maintaining the minimum one interclub a month we were able to complement it with a few 
Charter Night functions at other clubs as well. 

Golf Tournament - 85 people enjoyed a day of golf and dinner - we had lots of monetary prizes with the 
focus being on the social dinner rather than golf. Everyone seemed pleased with this event.. 

The Winter Skating Party was cancelled due to inclement weather; I would recommend that we not plan it 
in the future because we have seen it cancelled too often in the past because of the weather - it is a lot of work 
and planning, only to be disappointed at the last minute. 

Round Robin was a great wrap-up for our year! It was held at the homes of David and Patti Fair, Maurice 
and Anita Powers and John & Kathy Law and we want to thank them all for their hospitality. Over 60 people 
attended and it was a great evening. I highly recommend that this be continued - it is a wonderful way to pay 
tribute to our outgoing Board and to welcome our new President and his Board. Also, it is an excellent 
opportunity to meet new members as well as enable our spouses to get to know each other. We have had 
many compliments about the revival of this club tradition. 

Ski Weekend - while always popular in the past, was logistically not possible because of the unavailability, 
for various reasons, of suitable accommodation - I recommend that plans be started early in the year to plan 
this again for the year 2002 as this has always been a fun event. 

In view of declining participation and involvement over the past few years in Inter Clubs, I would strongly 
suggest that the Board consider a potentially new committee which would incorporate Inter Gub, Sports & 
Social with the Hands On Committee - and I would like to see this as a mandatory committee for first year 
members. 

Finally, I would like to recommend that a summer family picnic be organized to bring all members and their 
families together. This has also been held in the past and I feel it should be revived - it could be a very 
inexpensive event held at the home of one of our members where there is a lot of room for the children to run 
and play - perhaps barbecued hot dogs, hamburgers and soft drinks (and maybe a pool for swimming if that 
is possible?). Something for the new committee to work on! 

Vice-Chair. Jim MacLeod 
Director: Lynda Campbell 
Vice-Pres. Richard Munro 

Jim Anderson Stan Greenwood 
Albert Monsour Phil Rossy 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mike Shaughnessy, Chair 

Jack Johannsen 
Rob Thompson 

Henry Krzywicki 
Rob Tripp Vic Whittaker 
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LEGACY FOR LIFE COMMITTEE REPORT 2000-2001 

To: the President, Board of Directors and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

In contrast to past years, the Committee did not undertake new initiatives for the purpose of attracting 
major donations to the Legacy for Life Fund. The emphasis was to follow up on ongoing activities and to 
develop new ideas for entrenching the role of the Legacy for Life Fund as a key funding mechanism for the 
Club in the long term. 

CLUB EVENTS 

Guest Speaker October 2000 
The initial distribution of the new Legacy for Life booklet entitled Legacy for Life Fund Sustainable 
Funding/or the Kiwanis Club o/Ottawa was made available to members at the meeting of October 20,2000 
on the occasion of our guest speaker, Joanne Villemaire, who spoke on charitable giving._ 

Letter to all members from President Ed 
President Ed sent a letter in December 2000 to remind all members that significant tax advantages 
accompany donations or gifts to the Legacy for Life Fund. 

INDIVIDUAL ENDOWMENT FUNDS 

Approved by the Board of Directors last year, the Committee sought to develop at least one individual 
fund to be administered according to specific objectives established by the donor. Although a number of 
discussions with potential donors were held during the year, it was not possible to complete those 
discussions successfully by year end. 

ADVISORY COUNCIL 

The Committee discussed the idea of creating an Advisory Council to raise interest in and level of 
awareness about the Legacy for Life Fund. The Medical Foundation has used this concept successfully 
over the years. The Committee considered a draft of the role for such an Advisory Board under the 
leadership of the vice-chair and this idea may be pursued further in the 2001-2002 year. 

LEA VE A LEGACYMEMBERSHIP 

An intiative of the Canadian Association of Gift Planners to raise region-wide public awareness, the 
Committee joined this non-profit organization at an annual cost of $50.00. The newly established chapter 
in Ottawa will conduct a Leave a Legacy campaign to promote the donation of a lasting legacy to one's 
favourite charity. The Committee will benefit from the research and information literature generated. 
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MEMBER CANVASSING 

The successful campaign of the previous year was terminated with the completion of the member contacts 
which were outstanding from 1999-2000. 

RELATIONSHIP WITH MEDICAL FOUNDATION 

As a result of expressed confusion about the relationship between Legacy for Life and Medical Foundation, 
the past Chair, current Chair and vice-chair met with the Chair of the Medical Foundation to explore issues. 
It was agreed that the presentation of the Medical Foundation Fund as one of the "pillars" of the Legacy for 
Life initiative could be misinterpreted and that future communication efforts should be clearer. The Chair 
also met with the Medical Foundation Committee to further clarify the relationship. 

REVENUE AND DONATIONS 

The Committee's income this year amounted to $1991.00 in donor card and miscellaneous donations and a 
generous contribution of$1000.00 from CapCorp Planning Ltd. to offset some of the costs of producing 
the Legacy for Life brochure. Notice of a bequest of$1000.00 to be monetized in the future was also 
received. Interest on the Legacy for Life capital funds amounted to $3055. This revenue will raise the 
Legacy for Life Fund (disclosed donations plus earned revenue) to approximately $270,000.00. The market 
value of invested funds at year-end was $72,728.00. 

CHAIR'S APPRECIATION 

I am grateful to all members for their patience and contribution through the year and a special thanks to 
Paul Kane who allowed us to use his firm's offices for meetings, and to Paul's assistant, Donna Lowry, 
who arranged lunches and attendance. 

Ted Parsons, Vice-Chair 

Derek Finley, Director 

Committee Members: 

Sally Burks 
TomGrossman 
Ian Hendry 
Robert Houle 

Anthony McGlynn 
George Perrin 
Lucille Rousseau 

Yours in Kiwanis, 

John ONeil, Chair 
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KIWANIS MEDICAL FOUNDATION COMMITTEE 2000-2001 
To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The objectives of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation are to advance medical 
research and treatment in Ottawa by providing funding to those engaged in such work or funding 
assistance to organizations with similar objectives. 

The review process involves a committee member visiting with the person(s) making a request of 
the KMF and completing a Request Analysis Form to help determine the appropriateness of 
each. The request along with the reviewing member's recommendation is then discussed at a 
regular KMF committee meeting and, where required, the person submitting the request is 
invited to make a presentation to the Foundation and answer questions. 

Typical requests from the medical research and treatment community in Ottawa range between 
$1,000 and $6,000. The budget the KMF committee has to work with annually represents the 
investment income from its capital investments, which stand at about $694,000. Accordingly, 
depending on the investment climate, the KMF annual budget ranges between $40,000 and 
$50,000. With annual fees to the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa for administration and annual audit of 
approximately $4,000, the balance is available to support community requests that meet the 
KMF requirements. This year's supported requests were: 

• The outstanding commitment from the previous KMF year of $2,200 for the Rideauwood 
Addiction and Family Services school based treatment program at Bell High School. 

• $6,000 for the purchase of a spinal cord stimulator for the University of Ottawa Heart 
Institute. 

• $8,500 was approved for a special freezer for an exercise intervention trial for people 

• 

• 

• 

with diabetes for the Division of Endocrinology and Metabolism of the Ottawa Health 
Research Unit of the Ottawa Hospital. 
$5,000 to the Ottawa Hospital (General campus) for research in the area ofbioengineerd 
articular cartilage. 
$2,000 was spent for seed money for the Young Children Priority One Committee's 
hearing tests for pre-school children. 
$4,000 to CHEO for a 24-hour blood pressure monitor. 

The Kiwanis Medical Foundation and the Kiwanis Club received exposure through cheque 
presentation to the participation in Heart Institute and Cancer Centre telethons as well as the 
receipt of certificates and letters of gratitude from appreciative KMF fund recipients. We also 
hosted a successful Friday luncheon which featured three of our recipients and an informative 
talk on prostate cancer. 

At our June 1 lunch, I announced the extremely generous gift to the Foundation from a former 
member of the Club, who wishes to remain anonymous, of a life insurance policy in the amount 
of $600,000. Planned giving such as this can make a huge difference in our ability to support 
health research in this community. 
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I URGE MEMBERS OF THE KIWANIS CLUB TO MENTION THE FOUNDATION TO 
FRIENDS AND CONTACTS IN THE OTT A W A MEDICAL COMMUNITY. WE ARE 
AL WAYS PREPARED TO CONSIDER REQUESTS THAT MEET OUR CRITERIA. 

The nine 2000-2001 KMF Trustees and their term expiration dates are as follows: 

September 2001 September 2002 September 2003 

Allan Castel dine 
Bob Kingham 
Susan Menzies 

David Daubney 
Patrick Flain 
Michel Podeszfinski 

In closing, I would express my gratitude to: 

George Perrin 
Jim Wright 
Paul Poggione 

• Paul Poggione who acted as Secretary for accurately recording the committee minutes; 
• Allan Casteldine, George Perrin, Jim Wright, Victor Ferreira and Michel Podeszfiniski 

for joining me in hosting evening committee meetings; and 
• All trustees for their contributions in evaluating funding submissions and their role in 

analyzing the worth of such requests. 

I t was an honor to chair this year's KMF committee and I look forward to working with the 
incoming Chair, Paul Poggione and his committee as Director responsible for the Foundation in 
2001-2002. 

Respectfully submitted, 

David Daubney 

Chair: David Daubney 
Vice-Chair: Jim Wright 
Vice President Rep: Richard Munro 
Director Rep: Michel Podeszfinski 

Patrick Flain 
Susan Menzies 
Allan Castledine 
Bob Kingham 

George Perrin 
Paul Poggione 
Victor Ferreira 
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MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE REPORT 2000-2001 
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To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Membership Committee plays a vital role in the growth and success of our club and this 
year was no exception. As of October 30, 2000 we had 243 Active/Senior members and we 
ended our year on September 30, 2001 with 234; we have 11 Honorary, Chaplain and Honorary 
Chaplains for a total club membership of 245 members. 

The following 17 new members were introduced: 

Larry Parisien 
Michael Flint 
Kevin Keohane 
Bryan Healey 
Robert Fisher 
John Sabourin 

Sheri F arahani 
Victor Ferreira 
Paul Nemuth 
Dominic F errarotto 
Ross McIntyre 
Eric Cosgrove 

The following 21 members resigned or were deceased* 

Peter Clark Jim MacLeod 
Tony Bennett Norm Torontow 
Rob McGruer Moira MacDonald 
Yves Dagenais May Barnes 
Pierre Paradis Jim Anderson 
Gerry Myers Jack Johannsen 
Michael Morling Harold Shenkman * 

New Members Evening 

Diane Craig 
Michael Liang 
Doug McGregor 
Bill Shenkman 
Phil McNeely 

Jill Bobula 
Liz Van Den Akerboom 
Guy Desnoyers 
Frank Lambros 
Mike Mansfield 
Tom Lamothe * 
Darrell Ittermann 

The committee held a very successful New Members Evening on June 27th, 2001 hosted by Past 
President Ed Healy and his gracious wife Beverly_ It was a great social and educational event for all 
new Kiwanians and their partners and it is definitely an activity that should be repeated on a yearly 
basis. Special thanks to Ed and Bev for their warm hospitality_ 

Sponsoring New Members 
The Committee would also like to thank those members who sponsored a new member into our club 
New members are vital to the continued growth and success of Kiwanis and the work that it does so 
well throughout this community_ 

Corporate Membership 
The Challenge - to develop the framework for the introduction of what will be categorized as a 
Corporate Membership in the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. and part of the overall strategic planning 
goals envisioned for our club. 
A Corporate Membership Sub-Committee was struck, made up of the following: 
Past President David Fair Past President Ian Hendry 
Past President Marcia Saipe Past President Barry Weatherdon 
Past President Ron Wing Membership Chair Les Morin 20 



2. Membership 
The Results 
The framework andlor the "white paper" is now in place. It was developed mainly by Past President 
David Fair after a number of early morning breakfast meetings and brain storming sessions attended 
by some of our club's finest and wisest. Subject to revision, modifications andlor enhancements, a 
roll out date has yet to be selected, but hopefully, it will be out sometime soon. A special thanks to 
all the members of the Corporate Membership Sub-committee and, although we hate to single out any 
particular person, we must extend our gratitude to Past President David Fair for putting it all together 
in a marketable package as only David can. As outgoing chair, I would also like to thank all the 
members of the Membership Committee, Vice President Janet Dodds and Director Bill Cowie for 
their commitment, counsel and assistance during my year. 

SENIOR MEMBERS 
John Adjeleian 
Bob Alyea 
Jim Anderson 
Tom Assaly 
Guy Beauregard 
Tom Belton 
Tom Beveridge 
Ken Birchall 
John Booth 
Jim Bowie 
Vince Calzonetti 
Allan Castledine 
Frank Cauley 
Peter Charboneau 
Earl Crowe 
Dominic D' Arcy 
Tom Deacon 
Brian Dickey 
Jim Durrell 

HONORARY MEMBERS 
Hon. Abe Lieff 
Dr. Wilbert Keon 
Prince Charles 

Vice Chair-
Vice President -
Director -
Myrna Beattie 
Ken Birch 
Don Blakslee 
Walter Boyce 
Vince Calzonetti 

Gord Fleming 
Chris Fournier 
Wayne French 
Reg Gilstorf 
Stan Greenwood 
Tom Grossman 
Larry Haffner 
John A. Harcourt 
Don Keyes 
John Klatt 
Henry Krzywicki 
John Law 
Doug Legere 
Howard Lithwick 
Bob L ittlemore 
David Loeb 
Buck Madden 
Ian McDonald 
Brian McGarry 

Murray McKeage 
Janet Dodds 
Bill Cowie 
David Fair 
Rob Kalbfleisch 
Marcia Saipe 
John Sabourin 
Barry Weatherdon 

Keith McGruer Botho Von Hampeln 
Ken Miller Jim Watson 
Art Moody Barry Weatherdon 
Mike Moore Vic Whittaker 
Larry Nelms 
Barry Nicholds MEMBER 
Hap Nicholds Gerry Nicholds 
John Norton 
Darrell Powell HONORARY CHAPLAINS 
Moe Racine 
Vic Reed Bishop Peter Coffin 
Brad Ronald Rev. Art Conrad 
Mike Sharp F ather Barry McGrory 
Lome Smith Rev. George Sinclair 
Hy Soloway 
Con Stoltz CHAPLAINS 
Rob Thompson Father Bill More 
Frank Tipper Rev. John Moor 
Lome Usher Major Cliff Hollman 

Sister Maco Cassetta 

Keith McGruer (senior) 
Shirley Tomblin (active) 

Respectfully submitted, 

Les Morin, Chair 
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To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This year the Music/Entertainment Committee was not as active as we would have liked but the few 
presentations we did make were great fun. 

We had a highly successful Turnover Day with President Ed Healey being welcomed in to naval music from 
Gilbert & Sullivan's HMS Pinafore written and directed by Ann Max - who will ever forget Lome Usher as 
"Sweet Little Buttercup"? 

We were proud to have been asked to sing for the Sage Club's 25th Anniversary - a club we sponsored in 
1975 and which remains very active to this day. 

On October 13th we welcomed Kiwanis EC&C Governor Trevor Dunn from Jamaica and were fortunate to 
have our own Lt. Gov. Roy McKain lead the Music Committee in the Jamaica National Anthem. 

The old war favourites Pack Up Your Troubles, The White Cliffs of Dover and It's a Long Way to 
Tipperary rang out at our Remembrance Day luncheon in November and Bob Kingham did a rendition of 
Gracie Field's "The Biggest Aspidastra In the World" which brought back many memories to our over 60 
crowd! 

On December 2nd, Past President Wayne Beaudoin led the carol singing for the Parkinson's Christmas 
Party, accompanied by our pianist, Bob Gordon, many Music Committee members and Santa Oaus. This 
is a tradition which has carried on for many years in our club and which is always appreciated by the 
Parkinson's Society members and their families. We handed out candies to all present. 

The Program Committee asked us to include a choir along with the usual Christmas music for the Annual 
Family Party. We put together a 31 member choir with members of the Orleans Divine Infant Choir and 
our own Kiwanis Music Committee; dressed up in choir gowns loaned to us by Rev. George Sinclair and 
the St. Alban's Anglican Church Choir we looked real 'angelic'. 
Dominic D' Arcy and his youngsters followed to provide terrific entertainment for the young and the not so 
young in the crowd. 

Once again a big thank you to Dominic D' Arcy who co-ordinated the music for the Christmas Day Seniors 
Dinner at the Alex Dayton Centre. 

October was a busy month for our committee. Mark Max put together a terrific script for our farewell to 
Rita Harper - thanks, Mark- it was like old times! Then the following Friday, we said goodby to Normy 
Torontow who has decided to take it a little easier and join the Sage Club (although he said he is still 
available for any music presentation we are involved in); he was serenaded by Myrna Beattie and Shirley 
Tomblin. 

A special thank you to Dominic D' Arcy, Mark Max, Ann Max and Bob Gordon for sharing their special 
talent with us; as well, a big thank you to all of the members of our committee who made this year so special 
- it was a pleasure chairing this committee. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Co-Chair - Bob Kingham; Vice President - Janet Dodds; Director - Maurice 
Powers; Myrna Beattie; Wayne Beaudoin; Walter Boyce; Sister Maco Cassetta; Dominic D'Arcy; Ross 
Hadwen; Larry Haffner; Sandra Lee; Mike Lundy; Buck Madden; Ann Max; Mark Max; Sue Menzies; 
Mike Moore; Steve Moore; Marcia Saipe; Conrad Stoltz; Norm Torontow; Lome Usher; Bob Vergette; 
Barry W eatherdon; Val Wilkins 

Respectfully submitted, 

Shirley Tomblin, Chair 22 



MUSIC FESTIV ALCOMMITTEE REPORT 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Kiwanis Music Festival is 57 years young! Kiwanis became involved with the Festival in 1985 when 
we assumed shared responsibility with non-Kiwanis members. The Festival provides an opportunity for 
local music students to perfonn at a competitive level for the general public and be adjudicated by top 
quality professionals.We have come a long way since 1945 and should be very proud of the fact that we 
host the second largest Kiwanis Music Festival in Canada. This year boasts the highest participation ever, 
with over 3500 entries and perfonnances spanning over a three week period in eleven different locations 
across the city. 

Let me share some of the highlights of this year's Festival and Provincial competition which was held in 
Ottawa this past summer. Alison Smith was the recipient of an alto saxophone and fully paid music 
lessons for one year, gifted to her by an anonymous donor. She is currently studying music at the 
University of Toronto and plans to make music her career. The Volta Quartet who perfonned for our Club 
a year ago won the gold medal in London England and have been offered full music scholarships and 
residence to study music in California. 

Our Club provides financial assistance to local Festival winners who have been recommended by 
adjudicators to compete at the Provincial level. Without our assistance, these young musicians may never 
have an opportunity to compete at a higher level. We assisted 35 youth and this is what they wrote to me, 
with thanks. 

• Scholarships such as this offer great encouragement. I am very proud of my achievements . 

The recognition that we receive does wonders for self-esteem and morale because we work so hard 
throughout the year. I am thankful that Kiwanis helped make it possible. 
The Provincial event was an amazing experience, exposing me to a whole new level in my music. It 
has given me a lot of motivation. 
Weare grateful to those who help to foster and showcase the musical talents of a very special 
group of young people. 
This scholarship means a great deal to our daughter. It has made her proud of her hard work and 
has encouraged her to future musical study. 

ENCOURAGEMENT, PROUD, SELF-ESTEEM. This is what makes it all worthwhile and makes me 
proud of Kiwanis. We are dedicated to help build healthy youth within our community. Many thanks is 
extended to all who helped to make it happen. Without a doubt, the Kiwanis Music Festival is the envy of 
anyone who hears about it - let's make it live forever! 

Vice-Chair - Ross Hadwen 
Director: Bruce Brooks 
Vice President: Richard Munro 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barb Perrin 

Michael Chambers Ross Hadwen Sandra Lee 
Sid Lithwick 
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BRIER - NOKIA BRIAR REPORT - 50/50 DRAW 

To the President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa was given the opportunity of running the 50/50 draw 
at the Nokia Brier held in Ottawa at the Civic Centre from March 3rd to March 
11 th, 2001. We were advised that there would be twenty -one draws over the nine 
day period and that we should staff and budget accordingly. We set the budget to 
make $20,00 and, in fact, raised in excess of $32,500. 

This was not accomplished without a whole lot of help from a number of the 
other Kiwanis Clubs in the area, members of our Key Clubs and a fantastic 
contribution from our own members. 

The event turned out to be a huge project but at the same time, we were able to 
have fun during the selling process and even watch some of the fantastic curling 
between selling times. 

We started out with hardly enough members to staff the first draw and by the last 
draw we had people who had worked several shifts asking to come back to work 
again! 

One of the main reasons for the success of this project was the contribution by my 
Co-Chair, Shirley Tomblin who was tireless in her contribution, often working 
three draws in one day. 

On behalf of Shirley and myself, I would like to thank everyone involved who 
made this a truly successful event in every way. 

Director: Steve Moore 
Vice President: Richard Munro 
Committee Members 
Too numerous to mention 

Respectfully submitted, 

Clive Woolley, Co-Chair 
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OKTOBERFEST COMMITTEE REPORT 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The inaugural year of Oktoberfest 2001 was a success from day one. The early sponsorship 
commitment from Nova Networks gave us a significant starting position. To ensure that the 
windfall was not wasted, the Committee met every two weeks to secure the necessary talents 
and elements. 

A committee of "Doers", everyone brought something tangible to the table. Other "Doers" in the 
Kiwanis Club will be attracted to this every effective group and are most welcome. 

With the club backing and 2001 's track record, next year's ticket sales will result in a significant 
revenue increase, starting a growth pattern for years to come. 

The revenue from ticket sales was $25,945; from the Bar Sales - $7,350; from the Games - $220 
and from the Raffle - $1,030. Our sponsors were - Nova Networks - $20,000 

- Labatts/Olands - $ 5,000 
- Royal Bank - $ 500 

for a total revenue of $50,045.00. 

Major expenses included decorating - $10,582; Aberdeen Pavilion - $5,220; Bar expenses $7679; 
Signage - $4,544; Sound & Lights - $3210; D.l, Dancers, Band - $1335; Miscellaneous - $12,242 
for total expenses of$44,812. 

Total profit from our first Oktoberfest was $15,233.00. 

A great big "thank you" to the hard working committee who made it all happen. 

Co-Chair: 
Director: 
Vice-President: 

Geoff Godding 
Steve Moore 
Richard Munro 
Art Dowd 
Harold Geller 
Doug Legere 
Byron Martin 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kathleen Holst, Chair 

Gord Fleming 
Liz Van Den Akerboom 
Steve Weeks 
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PARTNERS IN CARING COMMITTEE REPORT- 2000-2001 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This was the third year for the Partners in Caring fundraiser in concert with the Ottawa Senators. 
Our beneficiaries this year were the Candlelighters Children's Cancer Trust, IDD and our own 
Community Services Account. This initiative raised in excess of $32,999 primarily through the 
sale of game day tickets and two 50150 draws where we broke the Ottawa Senators Foundation 
two day record. Shirley Tomblin and her 50150 volunteers did an outstanding job raising 
$15,075.00. 

Our Partners In Caring Luncheon on January 19,2001 featured Roger Nielson who was given a 
standing ovation for his talk on the challenges of dealing with cancer and the importance of 
fundraising projects such as Partners In Caring in helping meet the various adversities we all face. 
Jeff Kyle acknowledged the tremendous dedication to this project by Tom Spence by Presenting 
him with a Roger Nielson signed Ottawa Senators jersey and the use of a box for Tom and his 
family for a hockey game. 

The Partners In Caring Co-Chairs would like to thank all of the individuals who served on the 
committee, the ticket sellers and the those who purchased tickets, attended the game and helped 
make the results a success. 

We hope that Partners in Caring 2001-2002 is as successful as this.iyear's was. We wish the new 
committee all our best. 

Director: Bruce Brooks 
Vice President: Rick Barrigar 

Tom Belton 
Jeff Kyle 
Ross McHardy 
Bill Siekierski 
Tom Spence 
Jeff Spence 
Shirley Tomblin 
Sharon Walsh 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ian Peddie, Co-Chair Brian Quinn, Co-Chair 
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PROGRAM COMMITTEE REPORT - 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Between November 3, 2000 and October 26, 2001, the Program Committee has invited forty-two (42) 
speakers to address our membership. Over and above this, nine events were organized by the Club. These 
were dedicated to the business activities of the Club such as: the General Annual Meeting, discussions 
surrounding the development of the Strategic Plan of the Club, Key Club , Legion of Honour and New 
Members Induction and Turnover Day. 

On the average, the Friday luncheons at the Chateau Laurier have attracted 104 members and guests. Many 
of these events were covered by the written press, radio and television at the local and national levels. This 
coverage provided additional visibility to the Club. 

In light of the experience acquired in the management of the Program Committee over the past year, the 
Board of Directors should take into consideration the following: 

* Strict observance of the luncheon timetable with the view of providing a full 20 minutes of time 
to the guest speakers. On a couple of occasions over the last few months, the members who have invited 
very credible speakers were embarrassed due to the fact that the guest speakers had very little time to 
make his/her presentation. This was especially the case when we had for guest speakers -- Dr. Don 
Drummond, Vice-President and Chief Economist, Toronto Dominion Bank and Roger James, Entertainer. 

* Committee Chairs who plan to organize an event at one or another of the Friday Luncheons in order to 
promote a Kiwanis Club activity must advise the Chair of the Program Committee of their intention early 
on in the year. They must assure the members of the Program Committee that their guest speaker is an 
excellent and interesting speaker. 

* Access to side microphones by interveners, i.e. guests and members must be controlled 
both in terms of time and content. The invited interveners shall not consider their opportunity to use the 
'side microphones' as soap boxes! 

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to act as Chair of the Program Committee during the year 2000-
2001. I would also like to express my appreciation to all the members of the Program Committee as well 
as other members of the Club who have identified potential speakers. I shall not forget to mention my 
appreciation for the staff of the Kiwanis Office, especially Rita Harper. With the constant support of all 
these people it would have been impossible to meet the mandate with which I was charged. 

Vice-Chair: 
Director: 
Vice-President: 

Susan Menzies 
Michel Podeszfinski 
Richard Munro 
Don Blakslee 
John Callan 
Wayne French 
Mark Max 
Art Moody 
Lorne Usher 

John Booth 
Eddy Cook 
Larry Haffner 
Matt McGrath 
Pierre Paradis 
Phil Rossy 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jean Filion, Chair 

Jane Brady 
Dominic D' Arcy 
Jackie Holzman 
Keith McGruer 
Ted Parsons 
Ron Wing 
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2 - Program 

2000 
Nov. 3 

Nov. 10 

Nov. 17 

Nov. 24 

Dec. 1 

Dec. 8 

Dec. 15 

Dec. 22 
Dec. 29 
2001 
Jan. 5 
Jan. 12 

Jan. 19 

Jan. 26 
Feb. 2 

Feb. 9 

Feb. 16 

Feb. 23 

Mar. 9 

Mar. 16 
Mar. 23 

Mar. 30 
Apr. 4 
Apr. 12 
Apr. 20 

Apr. 27 

May 4 

May 11 
May 18 
May 25 
June 1 

ATIENDANCE 

Gilles Paquet, Faculty of Administration, Prof. Emeritus, University of Ottawa 
"Governance is A Subversive Notion" 90 

L. Gen. Charles Belzile "In Remembering our Military Past Will the Future 
be as Distinguished?" 109 

Judith Robertson, Dean - Faculty of Education, University of Ottawa 
"Challenges and Risks of Ontario's Education Initiative" 95 

George Langill, President and CEO, Royal Ottawa Hospital 
"Losing the Straight Jacket - the Royal Ottawa Hospital Reinvents Itself" 113 

Dr. Larry Black, Professor - Carleton University 
"Russia - Cold War? Hot War? No War?" and Induction of 10 new members by 

Past Pres. Ian Hendry and Les Morin 102 
Joanne Dube, Public Relations "The Canadian Wine Industry -- A Great Wine 

Selection for Christmas and the New Year!" 95 
Dr. Andrew Pipe, Member of the Canadian Olympic Medical Team 
"Canada's Olympic Program - The Road to Success?" 15 Olympians were present 111 
Family Party - "Special Choir and Dominic 0' Arcy and his Kids" 219 
No Meeting 

Board of Directors - "Annual General Meeting" 76 
Laurier Lapierre - Broadcaster and Canadian Historian 
"Canada at the Dawn of the New Millennium -- Social and Cultural Perspectives" 104 
Roger Neilson, Assistant Coach - Ottawa Senators 

"Partners in Caring - the Ottawa Senators" 146 
Judy Rebick, Journalist and Broadcaster - "Just Imagine Democracy!" 102 
Don Drummond, VP and Chief Economist, Toronto Dominion Bank 

" The Federal Budget - Options for a Growing Economy" 11 9 
Carol Ann Decker - singer - "Music for your Sweetheart" Special Door Prize -
Suite at the Chateau Laurier for one night + Dinner for two at Daly's, the Westin Hotel 81 
Thomas Schmidt, First Secretary - Cultural and Legal Affairs - German Embassy 
"History of Oktoberfest" - announcement - Major Sponsor Oktober Festival 109 
Hon. Minister Stephane Dion, Minister of Intergovernmental Affairs, Govt. Of Canada 

"The State of the Nation -- Federal/Provincial Perspective" 135 
Ms. Debbie Gilmer, Project Manager - Volunteer Learning Network/ Volunteer Ottawa 

"Volunteerism in Canada" 83 
Roger James, Celtic Singer "St. Patrick Day Music" 1 08 
David Zussman, PreSident, Public Policy Forum 

"Developing a Canadian Response to North America Integration" 94 
New Member's Meeting - "April Fool's Day - anything is possible!" 89 
Randy Reed, President, Children'S Hospital of Eastern Ontario' "Duck Race Kickoff" 158 
Rev. George Sinclair and Rabbi Steven Garten - "Easter/Passover Luncheon" 63 
Brig. General Les Rowbottom, National Defence, Canada 

"Once a Cadet, Always a Cadet" Air Cadet Program 83 
John Baird, Minister Social Affairs, Ontario Government 

"Salvation Army Red Shield Campaign Kick-off" 222 
Thomas D' Aquino, Canadian Council on Business Issues 

"Canada's Economic Perspective --- 2000 Decade" 100 
Music Festival Luncheon - winners of the 2000's Kiwanis Music Festival 74 
Key Club Luncheon - hosted by members of all four Key Clubs 1 26 
Legion of Honour and New Members' Induction 140 
Dr. Gad Perry, Ottawa Regional Cancer Centre - Medical Foundation luncheon 

"A New Approach to Treat Prostate Cancer" 81 
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June 8 

June 15 
June 22 
June 29 

July 7 
July 13 

July 20 
July 27 

Aug. 3 

Aug. 10 

Aug. 17 

Aug. 24 

Aug. 30 
Sept. 7 

Sept. 14 
Sept. 21 
Sept. 28 
Oct. 5 
Oct. 12 
Oct. 19 
Oct. 26 

Larry O'Brien, CEO Calian Technologies Inc. 
"Politics, Research and Business - Connecting the Dots!" 126 

Semi Annual Club Meeting - Discussion of Kiwanis Club Strategic Plan 63 
Christina Lubbock, CEO - Watercan Canada - "What is Watercan Canada?" 73 
Peter Herndorg, CEO- National Arts Centre 

"Promoting the Arts - The Mission of the NAC" 83 
Mrs. Allard - YMCA/YWCA - "Health Evaluation - A Kiwanis Perspective" 83 
Sandra Griffins, Ex. Dir. Canadian Child Care Federation 

"Why Care About Daycare?" 77 
Duff Conacher, Democracy Watch "The State of Democracy in the World" 67 
Paul Benoit, President and CEO, Ottawa Airport Authority 

"Economic Development of the Ottawa Airport" 4 9 
Barb Mcinnis, President of the Community Foundation -

"Philanthropy in the 21 st Century" 73 
Grete Hale, President, Leadership Ottawa 

"Leadership Ottawa -- An Excellent Track Record" 70 
Glynn Chancy, Co-Chair - Ottawa International Plowing Match 

"International Plowing Match, 2001" 83 
Mayor Bob Chiarelli, Mayor of Ottawa "Challenges Confronting the new Ottawa" 

visiting Kiwanians from Sicily 120 
Anything could happen - Kent Wilkinson in Charge! 68 
Han. Dalton McGinty, Leader of the Opposition - Ontario 

"Ontario Social Programs and Health Care - The Loyal Opposition's Perspective" 1 84 
Tribute to Administrative Secretary Rita Harper as she leaves for Victoria 1 26 
Chuck Strahl, Head - Democratic Alliance 91 
Turnover Day 112 
Gordon Ritchie, "Canada's Economic Progress and Perspective since NAFTA 11 8 
Gail Logan, President and CEO - Ottawa Board of Trade 103 
Harold Redekopp, Vice-President, CBC English TV Network 11 4 
Stockwell Day, Opposition Leader, Canadian Alliance Party 

"The Role of Her Majesty's Loyal Opposition since Sept. 22, 2001" 145 
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PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT - 2000-2001 

To: The President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

I was asked to step up as Chair of this committee when Krys Rudko' s business caused her to be 
out of town a good part of the year. 

Some of the challenging issues addressed this year were - changes that would effect the duties of 
committees with the hiring of a new Public Relations person, setting art work guidelines for print 
ads to give a more professional image and set Policy Statement for committees to follow when 
requiring Advertisements and Brochures. Jamie Johnson is thanked for his hard work on this 
report. 

Some highlights were: 

* Working on the "Olympic Luncheon" 

* Promoting the TD Chief Economist Don Drummond's speech to our club 

* Promoting Laura Hannant's talk at one of our luncheons re Advocacy Against Child 
Exploitation. 

* Publicized Roger Neilson's visit to our club as Assistant Coach of the Ottawa Senators. 

It was found to be hardest to get the press to highlight Kiwanis as well as the speakers when 
they write their coverage in spite of our sending out Press Releases and prior information. 

Director: Jamie Johnson 
Vice President: Rick Barrigar 

Guy Beauregard 
Michael Morling 
Howard Whittaker 

Leslie Coates 
Greg Payne 
John Willins 

Respectfully submitted, 

Fred Rendell, Chair 
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SENIOR CITIZENS COMMITTEE REPORT - 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

I am pleased to report that the Seniors Committee had a very successful year. 

CHRISTMAS LIGHT TOUR - the light tour was cancelled as seniors have a tendency to cancel 
at the last minute if the weather is poor - and the possibility of falling during the winter is a 
serious risk. We decided to replace this event with a Bus Tour during the Tulip Festival - this 
will be detailed later in this report. 

CHRISTMAS DA Y LUNCHEON - Christmas dinner was served to approximately 100 senior 
citizens at the Alex Dayton Centre. Dominic D' Arcy and his young signers and dancers 
provided the entertainment. Santa Claus (Ken Miller) was a welcomed guest. Many Kiwanis 
members and members of the Key Club were in attendance to help serve. 
Recommendation - this provides enjoyment to those who might not otherwise have a place to 
go for Christmas and it should be continued. There is some concern that the money spent does 
not reach enough people - perhaps reaching one person and making himJher happy at Christmas 
is worth the price and provides the true spirit of Christmas - GIVING. 

SENIORS LUNCHEON - there was no Seniors Luncheon this year as the Program committee 
schedule was full. We therefore decided to honour our Senior Citizen of the Year at the 'Seniors 
Tea'. 
Recommendation - it would seem a much better idea to honour senior citizens amongst their 
peers. I would suggest we continue to hold the ceremony at the Annual Tea and provide the 
honourees with free attendance at the Tea. 

TULIP /BUS TOUR - May 17, 2001 - we hosted 28 senior citizens from the Wellington Street 
Centre - everyone enjoyed themselves and we were treated to an amazing wealth of knowledge 
and trivia by the driver. We charged each person $2.00 to help cover the cost. 
Recommendation - charge $3 -$5 per person to defray the cost of approximately $350+ I 
suggest we continue - as this was very well received. It would be nice to get some exposure for 
the club - perhaps a sign ... 

CANADA DAY - Mayor's Seniors Breakfast - held in the Aberdeen Pavilion on July 1st this 
event was well attended by many Kiwanians who gave their time and efforts to provide water 
and coffee to approximately 5000 seniors. Once again as in years past, the coffee flow was 
inadequate. This caused many seniors to complain and the complaints were directed at the 
Kiwanians. We explained the situation and suggested they contact the Mayor's office. 
Recommendation - I would not recommend we continue this event unless the coffee issue can 
be resolved. 
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2 - Senior Citizens 

SENIOR'S TEA - Chateau Laurier - Augut 8th - This year we hosted approx. 260 senior 
citizens. The Grey Jazz Band with Starr Kelly and Bill Luxton as Master of ceremonies 
provided the entertainment and kept the people dancing. The decision to charge $7 per person 
may have limited the attendance along with the day being a Wednesday. The cost of the Tea 
increased substantially to $13 per person with tax and gratuities included. This caused a minor 
fluctuation in the budgeted amount. We honoured Bill Luxton and surprised him with a plaque. 
Mrs. Forrest from Robertson House fell and broke her hip ... The seniors continued to dance 
around her! 
Recommendations - continue this event - BOOK NOW for next year's Tea. Hold the event on 
a Tuesday or Thursday. Budget additional funds for the cost - perhaps consider $5.00 per 
person as a cost. Have someone who is familiar with computer design and print quality tickets. 

BARBECUE - WELLINGTON CENTRE - August 23, 2001 - held at the centre with 
approximately 50 seniors in attendance - rain did not dampen their spirits. Again, Dominic 
D' Arcy provided the entertainment and everyone made the most of the luncheon. 

I look forward to the future and respectfully forward the direction of the committee to the 
capable guidance of Robert Horlick. 

Vice-Chair: Myrna Beattie 
Director: Michael Findlay 
Vice-President: Janet Dodds 

Members 
David Kardish 
Wayne French 
Leo Labrie 
Bob Fisher 
Allan Macintyre 
George Perrin 

St. Betty Ann Kinsella 
Robert Horlick 
Matt McGrath 
Eric Cosgrove 
Dave McAlhone 
Con Stoltz 

Respectfully submitted, 

Bill Gosewitz 
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SPIRITUAL AIMS & INTERNATIONAL AFFAmS - 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This committee covers two distinct areas for the Club: 

Firstly, we promote the first Object of Kiwanis International "To Give Primacy to the Human 
and Spiritual rather than the Material Values of Life" 

Secondly, we investigate and support international projects. 

Spiritual Aims/International Affairs Achievements: 
- Co-ordinated the monthly schedule of Chaplains for our Friday luncheons 
- Provided speakers and assisted with luncheons - EasterlPassover - Rev. George Sinclair and 

Rabbi Steven Garten, both spoke to our club. 
Mike Baker, President of the Aktion Club of Ottawa attended, sitting at the head table. 

- Our fellowship luncheon hosted Laura Hannant who spoke to us about children's rights. 
- We granted four bursaries of $1000 each to Theology students from Saint Paul's University 
- The chartering of our Aktion Club and the further development of the Aktion club, involved 

inviting members to Friday luncheon meetings and interacting with many members of the club. 
Elliot Melamed, Leslie Coates, Maurice Powers, Walter Boyce and Dominic D' Arcy were just 
a few of the club members who helped us to hold a fun auction meeting, a very informative 
travel tips presentation meeting and great musical and fun meetings. 

- Co-ordinated the assistance to the Salvation Army Kettle Appeal, covering 2 locations for 2 
days in early December. 

- Sponsored 12 children @ $300 per child for the year through the Salvation Army's Foster 
Children Program. 

- Sponsored girls from the Y ouville Centre to attend a Friday luncheon meeting with Sister Maco 
Casseta. 

- Was involved with the twinning of our club with the Kiwanis Club of Acirale, Sicily. A 
reception held at the Centre Block on Parliament Hill, hosted by the Vanier Kiwanis Club and a 
simply spectacular celebration Friday luncheon welcoming some 55 visiting members 
highlighted this event. 

My sincere thanks to the membership of the committee for a great year. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Peggy Clark, Chair 
Vice-Chair: Sister Maco Casseta 
Director - Janet Dodds 
Tom Tom Harold Sister Betty-Ann Father Bill 
Major Sally Bill Harsh. 32 



SPONSORED YOUTH - CIRCLE K COMMITTEE REPORT 2000-2001 

To : The President and the Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

It was another busy year for the Committee. Both the Carleton University and University of 
Ottawa Clubs were active with weekly meetings and a number of volunteer events. Our 
committee had at least one representative at virtually all Circle K club meetings. 

The fundraising and community service activities by the Clubs included bake sales, pizza/pop 
night, meal service at the Alex Dayton Centre, tutoring, sponsoring a foster child, delivery of 
Christmas hampers, and the delivery of "kids' kits" for children in shelters. 

Carleton University again hosted a Circle K membership drive at which Rick Barrigar, Marcia 
Saipe and I addressed a class of undergraduate business students on the topic of volunteerism and 
Kiwanis. 

On March 9, 2001 the Clubs hosted the Circle K lunch at the Chateau Laurier. The guest speaker 
was Debbie Gilmer, Project Manager for Volunteer Ottawa. Representatives of the two Clubs 
carried out the various luncheon roles and provided a short summary of their respective Club's 
activities. 

From a social standpoint, other highlights included: 
a bowling event with the Key Clubs; 
Trivia Night with our own Rick Barrigar and Marcia Saipe; 
Year end dinner bash at the Hard Rock Cafe. 

I would like to thank Vice-President Rick Barrigar and Director Walter Boyce for their assistance 
and support throughout the year. Thanks also to all the members of the Committee who helped 
to make this a very rewarding year in helping to share the benefits of Kiwanis and community 
service with our youth. 

Vice-Chair: 
Director: 
Vice-President: 

May Barnes 

Glen Vaillaincourt 
Walter Boyce 
Rick Barrigar 

lim Bowie 
Richard Clayman 
Martin Diegel 

Frank Hegyi 
Howard Lithwick 
Paul Poggi one 

Respectfully submitted 

Harold J. Feder, Chair 
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SPONSORED YOUTH - KEY CLUB COMMITTEE REPORT - 2000-2001 

To the President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The four Key Clubs we sponsor (Fisher Park, Glebe, Sir Robert Borden and Nepean) were very 
active this past year. Membership was rejuvenated by younger students joining the Clubs. All 
Clubs averaged twenty members. Our Key Clubs continue to be a great venue for students who 
must complete forty hours of community work a year. This was decreed by the Ontario 
Government last year. 

Fund raising included the continued tradition of collecting Canadian Tire money to purchase 
items for Toy Mountain and a spaghetti dinner to raise funds for the earthquake victims in India. 
The Key Clubbers were involved with other fundraising efforts and helped out selling 50/50 
tickets at the Nokia Brier. 

This year's District Convention, held in Waterloo, On was well attended, with representation 
from all four clubs we sponsor. This was the second year that all clubs participated in the 
CHEO Duck Race in the Kids Zone. The Kids Zone provided a place for children to try their 
luck at games of chance and skill for prizes. This idea was conceived, organized and run by Key 
Clubbers in an effort to provide amusement for children attending on mce day. 

The annual Kiwanis luncheon was well orchestrated, highlighted by the Sir Robert Borden 
students performing a segment of their Never Shake a Baby play. Both the bowling and the year 
end social functions, organized by the committee were well run, with participation from over 
twenty students at both events. Approximately 50 Keyclubbers worked again this year as 
runners and scorekeepers at the Annual Champions for Children World Trivia Night where their 
contribution is very much appreciated. 

Once again, the committee members were outstanding. All committee members contributed to a 
successful year. Without their support our goals would not have been met. It has been an 
honour to serve as Committee chair for the past two years - thank you for the opportunity. 

Vice-Chair: Jan Mansfield 
Director: Val Wilkins 
Vice-President: Rick Barrigar 

Rosanne Beamish 
Guy Bourbonniere 
Rocco D' Angelo 
Ian Hendry 

Howard Lithwick 
Peter Patafie 
Glen Vaillancourt 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mike St. Louis, Chair 
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YOUNG CIDLDREN PRIORITY ONE COMMITTEE REPORT 2000-2001 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

"Serving the World's Children", the Kiwanis International motto once again set the course for the 
members of this committee during the last year. 

Reading is Fundamental (RIF) at Public School 
We have completed a fourth year in our on-going association with this school that serves as a window 
into the workings of the education system teaching children in the age group that Kiwanis has chosen 
to serve. Ross Hadwen continues to provide outstanding leadership in this effort to recruit readers, to 
add significant components to the experiences of the youngsters, and to be continually on the look-
out to help in the background with used toys, clothing, and other necessities that the "kids" would 
otherwise lack. The Sage Club again provided a major contribution in person-hours to RIF. 
Other activities included: 

Fall and Spring Book Distributions 
Annual Bus Tour - field trip to the Experimental Farm 
End of year BBQ 
Playground project $13,500 Club contribution to Total cost $29,690 
Community Support from Beauregard Press, Dollco Printing, Ottawa 67's Hockey Club, 
Seamstress production of neck warmers, hats, headbands 

Shaken Baby Syndrome 
The video is still very current with the evolution of efforts to curb this terrible phenomenon both in 
Canada and away. Sales of the video continue unabated as various initiatives are undertaken in 
jurisdictions throughout North America and awareness of its existence spreads. Beyond its intended 
audience of prospective parents it is proving a valuable tool for educating caregivers and other 
practitioners engaged in mitigation of the syndrome. We have learned that the solution to the problem 
is not a "quick-fix" but a multifaceted, sustained program of awareness across the spectrum of our 
society that also goes deep "into the heads" of those who shake babies. The club, through members 
from within the committee as well as without, is engaging in communities at various levels to draw 
attention and resources to reducing the incidence of SBS. We completed the series of Train-the trainer 
sessions in support of further developing the well of expertise in the community. In collaboration 
with the Key Clubs we have begun to take the message to future Moms and Dads. The Friday 
Luncheon attendees saw first hand a dramatization presented by Key Club Members that was used in 
Ottawa schools to deliver the message through a new medium. Cumulative sales since inception 
number 5900. Distribution in the current year amounted to 1050 for the first nine months showing 
growth over last year. 
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Precious Minds Video 
This initiative to promote Early Childhood Literacy largely focussed on distribution of the product 
developed last year. The committee received a Communications and Distribution Plan funded by the 
Ontario Trillium Foundation and proceeded to implement it in phases. The local partnership that we 
forged with Ottawa's Success By Six placed copies of the video into organizations delivering services 
to our target families throughout the community. Derek Finley secured matching funds from the 
Ontario Government Challenge Fund to deliver and promote the use of a copy of the video to all 
Libraries, Community Services Centers, and Daycare Centers in the province. Jim Low very ably 
represented the video at several meetings and conferences including the Early Years Conference in 
May, played a key role in coordinating activities and dealing with distribution issues. Val Wilkins 
helped showcase the video at the Kiwanis EC&C District Convention in late summer. Derek Finley 
played a key role in executing the sales strategy. Howard Whittaker provided strong support in 
developing marketing plans. 
Awareness building within the Kiwanis family has resulted in distribution initiatives, notably in 
Northern Ontario and BC. Orders for the video in this first year amount to well over 10,000 including 
the major distribution to Ontario mentioned previously. 

Hearing Screening of Preschool Children 
The committee, largely on the basis of Sam Bhargava's efforts with the aid of the Hands-On 
Committee, resources from Children's Hospital of Eastern Ontario (CHEO) and First Words 
conducted pilot screening clinics in east/west/central locations in the Ottawa area. The idea borrowed 
from a pilot project in Toronto is the early identification of hearing deficits among youngsters soon 
enough to reduce or prevent permanent loss or learning difficulties in school. The 3 Ottawa pilot 
sessions were very successful. Clinics will be offered in Ottawa next year. Sharing of our experience 
with other Service Clubs in Ontario has set the ground for extension of the service to the Cornwall 
Kiwanis Club and the Optimists Club in the Hawkesbury area. 

I thank everyone who contributed to the team's accomplishments. I specially thank my predecessor, 
Sam, for always being available with his advice and for his energetic contribution; Val Wilkins, who 
volunteered her time and efforts as a fully participating member of the committee; Derek Finley, 
Coordinator for marketing the Precious Minds Video; and the following for leadership of sub-
committee activities: Ross H. (RIF), Jim and Howard (Precious Minds & SBS), and Ross C. (SBS). 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
Vice Chair: Cas Sotelo 
Director: Val Wilkins 
Vice President: Janet Dodds 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ken Nelson, Chair 

Sam Bhargava, Ken Bickley, Ross Christensen, Eddy Cook, Ross Hadwen 
Tom Keogh, Don Keyes, Jim Low, Marc Charron, Howard Whittaker, John Sabourin 
Dominic Ferrarotto 36 



YOUTH & COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE REPORT - 2000-2001 

To: The President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

In the last year, the Youth and Community Services Committee responded to over 75 requests. 
This resulted in the committee spending over $28,.000.00. Our budget was augmented by the 
very generous donation from Ken Birch's own fund raising activities. 

A few highlights which demonstrates the important uses to which Kiwanis funds were put to use 
includes: 

• $7,.000 to assist Harmony House shelter victims of domestic violence 

• $2000 to help a local family deal with over $25,000 in medical expenses for their 

• disabled son. 

• $750 for Starlighters Foundation 

• $500 so a woman may have some severe dental problems taken care of 

This is all in addition to the Christmas program, camperships and assistance with wheelchairs, 
etc. 

Thank you to all the members of the Committee and also to all the Kiwanians for their efforts in 
raising the funds. As always, the office kept it all under control and organized. Thank you to all 
who helped make it happen. 

Vice Chair - Todd Norton 
Director - Steve Moore 
Vice-President Rick Barriger 

Liz Van Den Akerboom 
Pat Charbonneau 
Mark Charron 
Harold Feder 
John Norton 
Neil McDonald 

------ - ---

Darrell Ittermann 
Tom Keogh 
Bob Littlemore 
Neil McDonald 
Moe Racine 
Marcia Saipe 

Respectfully submitted, 

Will Thompson, Chair 

Jack Warner 
Bill Whillans 
John Willins 
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WAYS & MEANS COMMITTEE REPORT - 2000-2001 

To: The President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Ways & Means Committee is mandated to review existing activities of 
fundraising committees and to access new fundraising project ideas. 

Finding new, exciting and innovative fundraising initiatives has always been a 
challenge. This year saw the development and successful implementation of 
Oktoberfest, an event that will continue to grow as a fund raising venue and 
opportunity have have some fun! It is the hope of the Committee that the 
excitement and energy generated from this event will serve as a catalyst for the 
creation and development of new ideas and events. 

The Committee, recognizing the current fundraising activities of the club and 
available time openings for new events, looked to future events that could be 
explored in the present. Long tenn strategies such as a partnership in the opening 
of the Sports Hall of Fame and retirement celebrations for community patrons 
have been tabled and will move forward into the coming year. 

The year has passed in a blink. I would like to extend to all committee members 
and club members who provided input and recommendations as requested, my 
appreciation for your collective input, discussion and support. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Rob Tripp, Chair 

Vice-Chair: Jim Bowie 
Director: Walter Boyce 
Vice-President: Richard Munro 

Jane Brady Chris Fournier 
Peter Charboneau Don Keyes 
Dave Costford Alan Smith 
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Consolidated Financial Statements of 

KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, 
INCORPORATED 

Year ended September 30,2001 



AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, Incorporated 

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, 
Incorporated as at September 30, 2001 and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net 
assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Club's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

The Club derives revenue from membership fees, donations and various fundraising activities, the 
completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of 
these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Club and we were not able to 
determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to such sources of revenue, excess of revenue 
over expenses and net assets. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be 
necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of the revenue sources 
referred to in the preceding paragraph, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Club as at September 30, 2001 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles. As required by the Canada Corporations Act, we report that, in our opinion, these 
principles have been applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the 
Club taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in Schedules 1, 2, and 3 is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Chartered Accountants 

Ottawa, Canada 
February 19, 2002 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

September 30, 2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

2001 2000 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash $ 268,533 $ 291,941 
Short-term investments 13,362 
Accounts receivable 82,936 115,706 

32,291 6,769 
383,760 427,778 

Investments (note 2) 66,700 50,500 

Capital assets 32,217 26,185 
Less accumulated amortization 20,414 15,398 

11,803 10,787 

$ 462,263 $ 489,065 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 80,256 $ 128,323 
Deferred revenue 17,825 20,980 
Due to The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation 1,634 567 

99,715 149,870 

11,803 10,787 
294,926 313,622 

14,821 9,786 
35,998 

5,000 5,000 
362,548 339,195 

$ 462,263 $ 489,065 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 

Director 

Director 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

2001 2000 

Revenue: 
Fundraising (schedule 1) $ 442,644 $ 427,532 
Major Emphasis 188,949 75,655 
Key Club and Circle K 75 2,410 
KCO Non-Profit 41 40 
Senior Citizens 1,852 1,703 
Entertainment books 1,590 1,650 
Legacy 3,091 9,992 
Membership fees 60,835 59,679 
Recovery of administration costs - duck race 30,000 30,000 
Donations 1,525 
Recovery of administration costs - Kiwanis Medical 

Foundation 2,000 4,000 
Other 5,729 13,168 

736,806 627,354 

Expenses: 
Fundraising (schedule 1) 155,053 120,147 
Major Emphasis 119,627 83,726 
Air Cadets 19,436 12,356 
Key Club and Circle K 7,107 14,955 
KCO Non-Profit 15 103 
Senior Citizens 3,469 7,930 
Entertainment books 1,440 1,241 
Legacy 1,186 2,282 
Bank charges 792 1,667 
Administration (schedule 2) 213,283 166,845 
Other 30,434 8,264 

551,842 419,516 

Contributions (schedule 3) 161,611 202,843 
713,453 622,359 

Excess of revenue over expenses $ 23,353 $ 4,995 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

Restricted for Restricted for Restricted for 2001 2000 

Investment in "Never Shake a "Precious Minds" endowment 
capital assets Unrestricted Baby" project Project purposes Total Total 

Net assets, beginning of year $ 10,787 $ 313,622 $ 9,786 $ $ 5,000 $ 339,195 $ 334,200 

Purchase of capital assets 6,032 (6,032) 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenue over expenses (17,680) 5,035 35,998 23,353 4,995 

Amortization of capital assets (5,016) 5,016 

Net assets, end of year $ 11,803 $ 294,926 $ 14,821 $ 35,998 $ 5,000 $ 362,548 $ 339,195 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

2001 2000 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 23,353 $ 4,995 
Amortization of capital assets, which does not 

involve cash 5,016 4,682 
Change in non-cash working 19,320 

(14,538) 28,997 

Investments: 
Purchase of capital assets (6,032) (8,594) 
Purchase of investments (29,487) (50,500) 
Proceeds on of investments 13,287 

(22,232) (59,094) 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (36,770) (30,097) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 305,303 335,400 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 268,533 $ 305,303 

The Club considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less. 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Year ended September 30,2001 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, Incorporated (the "Club") is a non-profit service organization within the 
meaning of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is exempt from income taxes. The Club was 
chartered as a member of Kiwanis International in 1917. Its principal activities include providing 
services and financial support to various community organizations and projects. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Consolidated financial statements: 

The consolidated financial statements of the Club include the assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses and net assets of the Kiwanis Foundation and KCO Non-Profit Corporation. Kiwanis 
Foundation was established in 1967 as a registered charity with the aim of providing social 
assistance to a variety of community organizations and projects. KCO Non-Profit Corporation 
was established in 1997 with the objective of assisting in the fight against the Iodine Deficiency 
Disorder. 

(b) Investments: 

Investments are carried at cost. 

(c) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis with the exception of donation revenue which is 
recorded on a cash basis. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in net 
assets. Grants in excess of related costs for the period are reflected as deferred revenue. 

(d) Capital assets: 

Capital assets are stated at cost. Amortization is provided on the declining balance basis 
using the following annual rates: 

Asset 

Software 
Computer 
Photocopier equipment 
Furniture 

Rate 

50% 
30% 
30% 
20% 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended September 30,2001 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(e) Donated services: 

The work of the Club is dependent on the voluntary services of many members. Since these 
services are not normally purchased by the Club and because of the difficulty of determining 
their fair value, donated services are not recognized in these financial statements. 

(f) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Investments: 

Investments consist of Ontario Savings Bonds with interest rates of 5.50% and 5.75% to 7%, 
maturing in June 2004 and June 2005 respectively. The market value of these bonds was $70,684 
at September 30,2001. 

3. Restrictions on net assets: 

Of the net assets restricted for endowment purposes, $5,000 is subject to externally imposed 
restrictions, stipulating that this amount be maintained permanently. Investment income is to be 
used by the Directors of the Club for Club welfare purposes. 

The net assets from the "Never Shake a Baby" video project, $14,821, is subject to internally 
imposed restrictions, stipulating that the amount be used to provide funding for future activity related 
to the project. 

The net assets from the "Precious Minds" video project, $35,998, is subject to internally imposed 
restrictions, stipulating the amount be used for projects related to children. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended September 30,2001 

4. Commitments: 

(a) The Club has committed to provide funding to Harmony House for the repair and maintenance of 
their building. The amount committed is $7,500. 

(b) The Club leases premises under a lease that expires in February 2003. The aggregate annual 
rentals until expiry are as follows: 

2002 
2003 

5. Related party transaction: 

$ 7,938 
3,308 

$ 11 ,246 

During the year, approximately $23,000 was paid to a director of the Club for project management 
services. 

6. Deferred gift: 

The Club has been designated as the beneficiary of life insurance policies. As at September 30, 
2001, the estimated amount of insurance in force for which the Organization has been designated 
as beneficiary totals approximately $117,500. Premiums paid during the year by the insured were 
approximately $2,300. These amounts are not recorded in these financial statements. 

.. .. 

: 

: 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Schedule 1 - Fundraising 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

Proceeds Expenses 2001 2000 

Bon appetit $ 47,180 $ 12,256 $ 34,924 $ 44,997 
Dream of a Lifetime 31,000 2,032 28,968 28,935 
Duck Race 132,572 21,546 111,026 99,988 
Golf tournament 100,690 34,584 66,106 72,029 
New York Disaster Fund 1,885 1,885 
Nokia Brier 90,531 59,440 31,091 
Ottawa Senators 35,894 25,195 10,699 27,806 
Weekly raffle 2,892 2,892 3,569 
Jim Durrell Roast 25,362 
Kiwanis for Kids Lottery 4,699 

$ 442,644 $ 155,053 $ 280,929 $ 307,385 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Schedule 2 - Administration Expense 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

2001 2000 

Amortization of capital assets $ 5,016 $ 4,682 
Bad debts 10,178 
Bank charges 451 1,590 
Conventions: 

International 7,869 4,525 
District 5,532 3,535 

Credit card service charges 1,712 2,549 
Kiwanis supplies 676 1,284 
liability insurance 6,957 4,207 
lieutenant Governor's costs 4,302 4,410 
Magazine subscription 3,671 1,740 
Membership Committee 3,919 3,285 
Membership dues: 

International 10,035 12,058 
District 7,657 7,853 

Miscellaneous 4,478 1,507 
Music Committee 197 1,043 
Postage and courier charges 9,619 9,270 
President's honorarium 2,000 2,000 
Printing, stationery and office 26,821 17,477 
Professional fees 11,880 7,622 
Programme and luncheon 7,533 4,983 
Rent and municipal taxes 8,008 9,383 
Roster 4,393 5,871 
Salaries and benefits 76,267 61,744 
Weekly luncheon, net (5,888) (5,773) 

$ 213,283 $ 166,845 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Schedule 3 - Contributions 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

2001 2000 

Boys and Girls Club $ $ 15,000 
Children's Hospital of Eastern Ontario - Duck Race 104,252 101,576 
Community funding - Hands On 828 3,018 
Contribution to Music Festival 8,500 9,250 
Kiwanis Medical Foundation 15,000 
New York Disaster Relief Fund 2,500 
Other/Lottery - Champions of Children 6,598 2,223 
Ottawa School Board 10,000 
Spiritual Aims and International Affairs 11,309 12,779 
Youth and Community Services 17,624 18,997 
Youville Centre 15,000 
St. Mary's Home 10,000 

$ 161,611 $ 202,843 

--- ------------ -
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF THE KIWANIS 
CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL FOUNDATION 

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical 

Foundation as at September 30, 2001 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets 

and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 

Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with 

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of 

material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 

the overall financial statement presentation. 

In common with many charitable organizations, the Foundation derives revenue from donations 

and functions the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification . 

Accordingly, our verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records 

of the organization and we were not able to determine whether any adjustments might be 

necessary to such sources of revenue, excess of revenue over expenses and net assets. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be 

necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of the revenues 

referred to in the preceding paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of the Foundation as at September 30, 2001 and the results of its 

operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally 

accepted accounting principles. 

Chartered Accountants 

Ottawa, Canada 

February 19, 2002 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Financial Position 

September 30, 2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

2001 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash $ 46,178 
Accrued interest receivable 1,272 
Due from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 1,634 

49,084 

Investments (note 2) 646,605 

$ 695,689 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,500 

Net assets: 
Internally restricted 150,000 
Restricted for endowment purposes (note 3) 5,000 
Unrestricted 539,189 

694,189 

$ 695,689 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board of Trustees: 

Trustee 

Trustee 

2000 

$ 48,229 
1,438 

568 
50,235 

637,917 

$ 688,152 

$ 4,200 

150,000 
5,000 

528,952 
683,952 

$ 688,152 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Operations 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

Revenue: 
Donations 
Investment 
Kiwanis Club of Ottawa contribution 

Expenses: 
Medical research grants: 

Young Children Priority One 
University of Ottawa 
Ottawa Hospital General Campus 
Ottawa Health Research Institute 
Children's Hospital of Eastern Ontario 
Ottawa Heart Institute Foundation 
Rideauwood Addiction and Family Services 
Ottawa Regional Cancer (Goel) 
Queensway Carleton Hospital 
YMCA-YWCA 

Administration fee - Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Incorporated 
Audit 
Miscellaneous 

Excess of revenue over expenses 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2001 

$ 8,247 
38,910 

47,157 

2,000 
6,000 
5,000 
8,500 
4,500 
6,000 

2,000 
1,500 
1,420 

36,920 

$ 10,237 

2000 

$ 8,521 
40,535 
15,000 
64,056 

31,000 
5,000 
5,000 
5,000 
4,000 
2,000 
1,816 

53,816 

$ 10,240 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

Restricted for 
Internally endowment 
restricted purposes Unrestricted 

Net assets, beginning of year $ 150,000 $ 5,000 $ 528,952 $ 

Excess of revenue over 
expenses 10,237 

Net assets, end of year $ 150,000 $ 5,000 $ 539,189 $ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Total Total 
2001 2000 

683,952 $ 673,712 

10,237 10,240 

694,189 $ 683,952 r 

! 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended September 30,2001, with comparative figures for 2000 

2001 

Cash provided (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 10,237 
Change in non-cash operating working capital (3,600) 

6,637 

Investments: 
Purchase of investments (296,406) 
Proceeds on disposal of investments 287,718 

(8,688) 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,051 ) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 48,229 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 46,178 

2000 

$ 10,240 
(2,440) 
7,800 

(23,855) 
29,250 

5,395 

13,195 

35,034 

$ 48,229 

The Foundation considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with maturities of 
three months or less. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended September 30,2001 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation is a registered charitable organization. The 

Foundation was established in 1980 with a mandate to advance medical treatment and research 

and to provide assistance to other organizations with similar objects. The net assets of the 

Foundation must be maintained at a minimum of $150,000. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Investments: 

Investments are carried at cost. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis with the exception of donations which are recorded 

as revenue only when received. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases 

in net assets. 

(c) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Investments: 

Mortgage backed securities: 
$50,000, 6.5%, maturing December 1, 2000 
$100,000, 6.25%, maturing January 1, 2001 
$25,000, 6.25%, maturing February 1, 2001 
$50,000, 6.875%, maturing April 1, 2001 
$60,000,6.75%, maturing August 1,2001 

$ 

2001 2000 

$ 48,220 
95,644 
24,558 
48,699 
61,426 

278,547 

II 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements, page 2 

Year ended September 30,2001 

2. Investments (continued): 

2001 

Mortgage backed securities (continued): 
Balance carried forward $ 
$25,299, 5.875%, maturing May 1, 2002 19,534 
$20,000,8%, maturing August 1,2002 17,908 
$25,000, 8.375%, maturing August 1, 2002 842 
$75,000, 5%, maturing December 1, 2002 97,221 
$25,000, 5%, maturing February 1, 2003 23,183 

. $25,000, 8.125%, maturing July 1, 2003 2,827 
$20,000, 5.65%, maturing September 1, 2003 16,902 
$20,000, 5.65%, maturing September 1, 2003 24,027 
$27,896, 5.625%, maturing January 1, 2004 15,522 
$25,000, 4,875%, maturing February 1, 2004 110,362 
$35,000, 7%, maturing March 1, 2004 5,240 
$15,000, 7.25%, maturing July 1,2004 3,331 
$38,000, 5.625%, maturing November 1, 2004 38,074 
$26,000, 5.55%, maturing June 1, 2005 25,647 
$30,000, 7.625%, maturing June 1, 2006 28,653 
$25,000, 5.625%, maturing June 1, 2006 23,392 
$50,000, 5.5%, maturing August 1, 2006 50,943 
$50,000, 5.5%, maturing August 1, 2009 48,109 

551,717 

Ontario savings bonds: 
5.250%, maturing June 21,2001 
4.750%, maturing June 21,2003 25,000 
3.00%, maturing June 21, 2004 20,000 
5.5%, maturing June 21,2004 25,000 

Ontario Hydro bond: 
7.75%, maturing November 3,2005 24,888 

$ 646,605 

Market value $ 659,998 

3. Restrictions on net assets: 

2000 

$ 278,547 
21,654 
18,211 

891 
73,574 
23,558 

3,111 
18,769 

17,585 
24,212 

6,252 
3,791 

28,979 
23,895 

543,029 

25,000 
25,000 
20,000 

24,888 

$ 637,917 

$ 632,139 

The $5,000 of net assets restricted for endowment purposes is subject to externally imposed 

restrictions stipulating that this amount be maintained permanently. Investment income on the 

$5,000 is to be used by the Trustees of the Foundation for medical research. 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements, page 3 

Year ended September 30,2001 

4. Commitment: 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation has committed an aggregate amount of $44,000 

to Rideauwood Addiction and Family Services for substance abuse treatment and research at Bell 

High School. The Foundation donated $Nil (2000 - $31,000; 1999 - $5,000) in the current year. 

The remaining $8,000 is payable upon completion of a video. 

5. Deferred gift: 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa has been designated as the owner of a term life insurance policy. 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation has been designated as the beneficiary of this 

policy. As at September 30, 2001, the estimated amount of insurance in force is $600,000. 

Premiums paid during the year by the insured were approximately $8,000. These amounts are 
not recorded in these financial statements. 



A D E G H J 

2 Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. 

3 Combined Statement of Revenue and Expenses 
4 2001-2002 4th DRAFT Budget and 2000-2001 UNAUDITED 

5 2000-01 2001-2002 

6 .: :.Budget Actual Budget 

7 Revenue 

8 Fund Raising Events Proceeds (Schedule1) 357,900 452,536 A 397,200 

9 KCa Non Profit Corporation 0 0 0 

10 Membership Dues 60,000 58,204 60,000 
11 Recovery of Admin. Costs-Duck Race 30,000 30,000 45,000 
12 Recovery of Admin. Costs-Med. Foundation 4,000 2,000 2,000 
13 Weekly Lunches! Parking 3,000 1,693 3,500 
14 Weekly Raffles & Fines 4,000 2,892 2,800 
15 YCpa Videos 167,969 117,000 * 

16 ycpa VIDEa - Precious Minds Ontario Government 499,000 * 

17 Convention Registration 32,419 
18 Total Revenue 458,900 I 715,294 I 1,158,9191 
19 

20 Expenses 
21 Direct Fund Raising Expenses - (Schedule 1) 67,960 129,465 B 126,550 
22 KCa Non Profit Corporation 0 0 0 
23 Administrative Expenses (Sch. 2) 140,000 151,900 C 197,350 
24 Committee Support (Sch 2) 16,000 12,422 G 15,000 
25 Direct Kiwanis Expenses (Sch. 2) 39,100 41,515 0 34,900 
26 YCpa Videos (SBS & PM) 126,936 85,000 * 

YCpa Videos Precious Minds Ont Government 387,000 * 

Variance (7,656) 
Convention 2002 Advance 32,419 

30 Total Expenses 263,060 I 454,582 I 878,219 I 
31 
32 Net Revenue before Contributions 195,840 I 260,712 I 280,700 I 

Contributions and Revenue Sharing (Schedule 1) 159,550 134,547 E 240,050 
Community Services Projects (Sch. 1) 60,571 91,912 F 2,500 

36 Contributions/Community Services Proj. 220,121 I I 226,459 I 242,550 I 
37 
38 
39 Actual 
40 Surplus (Deficit) For The Year . {24 2281}1 I 34 2253 I 38,150 I 
41 
42 Surplus (Deficit), Beginning 339,195 339,195 373,448 
43 
44 Surplus (Deficit), End 314,914 I 373,448 I 411,598 1 
45 Capital Expenditures 17,500 
46 
47 * Restricted Funds 
48 
49 
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A I B I C I 0 I E 1Ft G I H I I I J I K I L I M I N I 0 I P I a I R S 

50 

51 Schedule 1 I FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, Inc. 

...21.. 2001-2002 4th DRAFT Budget and 2000-2001 Actual 
53 ----------····----·---2001-2002 Budget-····················· I ····················200 O· 2 0 0 1 Actual (UNAUDITED) ••••••••••••••••• 

- Gross ... Direct Total :Ifter · Revenu. :Shlrlng! Net I Gro •• Direct Totll Ifter Revenue Shlrlng! Net 2000·01 
....§..§. Revenue Expenses Expense. Contributions Revenue I Revenue Expenses . Expen .... Sponlorshlp Revenue Budget Net 

..§..g.. Major Fund Raising Activities I 

-ll. Bon Appetit 55,000 16,300 38,700 38,700 I 47,180 12,256 34,924 34,924 43,000 

....§.!. Brier - March 2001 0 o I 90,531 59,440 31,091 20,000 

.2.2.. Dream of a Lifetime 31,000 31,000 (2,000) Klwaniannes 29,000 I 31,000 32 30,968 (2,000) Klwanlannl 28,968 29,000 

..ll. Duck Race (based on 85,000 ticket: 115,000 28,500 86,500 (86,500) CHEO/GA o I 132,572 21,546 111,026 (104,252) O£O 6,774 15,000 

r4- Golf Tournament 101,600 40,300 61,300 61,300 I 100,690 34,584 66,106 66,106 65,000 
Ottawa Senators Partners in Caring 25,000 25,000 (25,000) Senators SbyS o I 35,894 35,894 (25,195) 10,699 

4 Oktoberfest 58,000 40,000 18,000 18,000 I 
Sub-total (lla 500) .l4l....Q..O..Q 1 UL.a.6..Z 121....W (l a1 HZ) 1.4.Lil..1. 

Other Fund RaiSing I 
Nevada Tickets 0 o I 0 0 0 0 
Entertainment Books ($6+$15 per) 1,600 1,450 150 150 I 1,590 1,440 150 150 1,140 
Donations 2,000 2,000 2,000 I 3,741 3,741 3,741 1,500 
Other (interest etc) U.M 8,000 8,000 1 9,338 167 9 171 9 171 8000 

Sub-total 11,600 1,450 10,150 10,150 1 14669 1 607 13062 13062 10640 

r.l..!.. Revenue Contribution Totals I 397,200 I 126,550 II 270,650 I (113,500)1 I 157,150 I AI 452,5361 129,465 I I 323,0711 (131,447)1 I 160,533 182,640 

72 I B -
...ll.. Community Services Projects Community Contributions I 

...l.i. AKtion Club 0 (4,0,90) (4,000) 

..ll. New York Disaster Relief 0 0 1,850 0 1,850 (2,500) (650) 

..:il.. Air Cadets/Gov Gen Foot Guards 0 0 (20,000) (20,000) 25,436 (25,436) (25,436) (17,786) 

..J.L. Passing the Torch Campaign 0 0 (10,000) (10,000) 0 0 

..1JL Circle K 0 0 (7,500) (7,500) 1,255 (1,255) (1,255) (7,175) 

-L2.. Key Club 0 0 (9,000) (9,000) 75 6,752 (6,677) (600) (7,277) (15,060) 
....§JL Hands-On 0 0 0 828 (828) (828) (2,000) 

.Jll. legacy for Life 1,500 (1,500) (1,500) 3,091 1,186 1,905 1,905 1,500 

...ll. Misc I Board Contingency 1,000 (1,000) (1,000) 1,507 (1,507) (1,507) (1,000) 
Music Festival 0 (6,050) (6,050) 8,500 (8,500) Provincials (8,500) (4,400) 

..Jli. Senior Citizens 0 (8,000) (8,000) 1,852 3,469 (1,617) (1,617) (7,200) 
Spiritual Aims 0 (9,000) (9,000) 11,309 (11,309) (11,309) (13,500) 
Ways & Means 0 0 0 0 

r1U- YCPO - RIF and other initiatives 0 (5,500) (5,500) 10,914 (10,914) (10,914) (11,500) 

r-#- Youth & Community Services 0 0 1 1 450 29074 (27 624) (27 624) (25 000) 
Community Services Totals 0 U.Q.Q I 12 50011 8318 100 230 1 1 (91 912)1 La...1O..O.l (lOa 121) (] 29 050) 1 

I I 460 ,854 I F 
91 Net Proceeds Available I (240,050)1 I 28,10011 I (134,547)le I 65,521 79,519 - Gross Direct Total after Revenue Shlrlng! Net I Gross Direct Total after Revenue Sharing! Net 

Revenue Expenses Expenses Contributions Revenue I Revenue Expenses Expen ... . SponlOl'lhlp Revenue 
94 

Young Children Priority One· Sponsored Projects . 
.. 

• Net · put to Deferred Revenue I • Net Revenue to o.r.nwd Revenue· YCPO . .. 

YCPO - SSS Videos 4,500 4,500 0 o I 12,321 7,286 5,035 5,035 
97 YCPO - Precious Minds videos 5 500 15000 (9500) (9500) I 155 648 119650 35998 35998 

( ·1 
I 167,969 126,936 41,033 79 519 

99 I . 2001-2002
1 r;oo I Budaet 
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Administration and Support Costs 

Annual Audit & Professional fees 

Bank Charges (GA only) 

Credit Card charges (GA 2549 / CS 1448) 

Depreciation 

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 

Directors & Officers Insurance 

Office Insurance 

Office Expense: Printing/Stationary / Office Supplies 

Office Expense: Computer/Software 

Office Expense: Office Equipment Leasing 

Miscellaneous 

Postage & Courier charges 

President's Honorarium 

Salary-Administrative Secretary 

Salary-Marketing Coordinator (+ $15K from CS) 

Salary - General Manager 

EHT & Worker's Compensation 

C.P.P. Deductions 

Employment Insurance 

Payroll Service charges 

Benefits 

Temporary Assistance 

Total Administration and Support Costs 

Committee Support 

Membership & Attendance (BUDGET) 

Music/Entertainment (BUDGET) 

Interclub Committee (BUDGET) 

Programme Committee (BUDGET) 

Public Relations (BUDGET) 

Kiwanis Expenses 

District Con' (2000 London 1 2001 Jamaica) 

International Convention (2000 Miami 12001 Taiwan) 

Kiwanis Supplies 

Lt. Gover. Expenses (99 245 x $16 / 2000 238 x $17 

Members Dues-International 

Members Dues-District 

Kiwanis Liability Insurance 

Kiwanis Magazine Subscription 

Total Kiwanis Expenses 
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Budget Unaudited 

6,500 

500 

3,000 

2,000 

3,000 

o 
3,000 

16,000 

4,000 

o 
9,000 

11,000 

5,000 

2,000 

41,000 

23,000 

1,000 

5,000 

4,000 

139,000 I 

3,000 

1,000 

o 
7,000 

5,000 

16,000 I 
6,000 

4,000 

1,000 

4,100 

10,000 

8,000 

3,000 

3,000 

39,1001 

Actual 

6,500 

451 

1,712 

2,707 

4,700 

o 
2,718 

1,466 

16,114 

3,734 

4,500 

480 

1,080 

o 
8,217 

7,998 

2,740 

4,393 

2,000 

44,065 

11,880 

13,307 

333 

5,262 

2,018 

220 

3,305 

151,900 Ie 

3,919 

197 

572 

7,533 

202 

12,4221G 

5,000 

7,086 

676 

4,302 

10,350 

7,657 

2,773 

3,671 

41,515 10 

194,100 I I 205,837 

Budget 

7,000 

500 

3,000 

2,800 

8,000 

o 
2,800 

1,600 

16,500 

4,000 

4,500 

500 

1,100 

o 
7,500 

11,000 

2,300 

5,500 

2,000 

33,000 

o 
47,000 

1,000 

5,550 

4,550 

650 

5,200 

2,400 

2,400 

15,000 

3,000 

1,000 

o 
7,000 

4,000 

1,500 

4,000 

1,000 

4,100 

10,300 

8,000 

3,000 



Club Account 

Revenue 

Expenses 

Community AccCVJnt 

Budget Summary 
Club and Community Accounts 

2001/2002 

Memberships 
Duck Race - admin fee 
Other 

Administration (total $247,000) 
1000/0 Kiwanis Club ($15,000 + $34,900 = $49,900) 
32% ($247,000 - $49,900 = $197,100) 

Profit/loss of club 

Fundraising ($397,200 - $126,600) 
Videos ($616,000 - $472,000) 

Less administration charge 68% of $197,100 allocation 

Contributions to Community 

Profit/loss community account 

Combined Budget -Surplus (loss) for 2001/2002 

club&commJ7 

(OOO's) 

$ 60 
45 

8 
113 

$ 50 
63 

113 

$ 

$ 270 
144 
414 

(134) 
280 

(242) 

$ 38 

$ 38 


